
AGENDA 
HANOVER CITY COUNCIL 

JUNE 21, 2016 
MAYOR 
CHRIS KAUFFMAN 
 
COUNCIL 
JOHN VAJDA 
DOUGLAS HAMMERSENG 
KEN WARPULA 
JIM ZAJICEK 
 
1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: 

a. Approve Minutes of June 7, 2016 City Council Meeting (pg. 3) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (pg. 8) 

 Claims   $  106,518.32 
 Payroll   $      8,005.58 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      3,208.37 
 Other Claims   $      1,437.00 
 Total Claims     $  119,169.27 

c. Res No 06-21-16-74 – Appointing 2016 Election Judges (pg. 36) 
d. Res No 06-21-16-75 – Approving Annual Liquor License Renewal (pg. 37) 

 
4. Continued Nuisance Abatement Hearing – 1367 Rolling Oaks Drive 

 
5. 10026 4th St. NE – Nuisance Issues (pg. 39) 
 
6. General Fund Reserves Transfer to Capital (pg. 69) 

 
7. Reports 

 
8. Adjournment 



To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council 
 
From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator 
 
Date:  June 17, 2016 
 
Re:  Review of June 21, 2016 City Council Agenda 
 

1. Call to Order: 6:00 p.m. 
 
2. Approval of Agenda 
 
3. Consent Agenda Items: See enclosed packet. 

a. Approve Minutes of June 7, 2016 City Council Meeting (pg. 3) 
b. Approve Claims as Presented: (pg. 8) 

 Claims   $  106,518.32 
 Payroll   $      8,005.58 
 P/R taxes & Exp $      3,208.37 
 Other Claims   $      1,437.00 
 Total Claims     $  119,169.27 

c. Res No 06-21-16-74 – Appointing 2016 Election Judges (pg. 36) 
d. Res No 06-21-16-75 – Approving Annual Liquor License Renewal (pg. 37) 

 
4. Continued Nuisance Abatement Hearing – 1367 Rolling Oaks Drive 

This abatement hearing was continued from the November 4, 2015 City Council meeting.  The nuisance 
abatement is related to the property owner failing to re-establish turf after a patio and driveway project 
was completed.  We sent letters directing the repair of the lawn last year.  After no response or progress 
from the property owner, Council held an abatement hearing.  Given the time of year, Council continued 
the hearing until spring 2016 to provide adequate time for grass to grow or sod to be purchased and 
installed.  Seeing no results, staff has provided notice to the property owner that the public hearing is to 
be continued at this meeting, where staff is seeking direction from Council to order work done. 

 
5. 10026 4th St. NE – Nuisance Issues (pg. 39) 

This property has remained vacant for the past three years approximately.  The city has been ordering 
work done to the property to maintain the lawn.  Unfortunately, other nuisances are beginning to appear.  
In summary the house is vacant and beginning to show signs of the vacancy.  The lawn is never 
maintained by the owner, water was flooding the house but has been shut off, mold began to grow, and 
weeds are over taking the landscaping.  The City has a nuisance abatement protocol.  Additionally, the 
enclosed memo discusses options for cities to follow when dealing with properties of this nature. 

 
6. General Fund Reserves Transfer to Capital (pg. 69) 

The enclosed spreadsheet outlines anticipated capital expenses in the coming years.  It further outlines 
fund balances and projected changes to occur.  Discussion will be held to determine how excess funds in 
the general operating budget will be distributed amongst the capital funds. 

 
7. Reports 

 
8. Adjournment 

 



CITY OF HANOVER 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

JUNE 7, 2016 – DRAFT MINUTES 
 
Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance: 
Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, June 7, 2016 to order at 7:00 p.m.  
Present were Mayor Chris Kauffman, John Vajda, Doug Hammerseng, Ken Warpula, and Jim Zajicek.  
Also present were City Administrator Brian Hagen, Accountant/Deputy Clerk Elizabeth Lindrud, Public 
Works Supervisor Scott Vogel, City Attorney Jay Squires and City Engineer Justin Messner.  Guests 
present included Senator Mary Kiffmeyer, Vonnie Waters, Krysta Mitchell, Tim Bienias, Claudia 
Pingree, Janet McDaniel, Hennepin County Sherriff, and Doug Voerding from the Wright County 
Journal Press 
  
Approval of Agenda: 
Hagen sent out a revised agenda which removed the EDA incentive program until more information 
could be gathered.  Kauffman added Senator Mary Kiffmeyer as item 2a. 
MOTION by Warpula to approve the agenda as amended, seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
Senator Mary Kiffmeyer 
Senator Kiffmeyer gave an update on the legislative session.  The tax cut bill was not approved by 
Governor Dayton, but the supplemental spending bill was passed.  Some items that passed were a bill 
requiring high school students to take a shortened version of the citizenship exam, and there are also 
state and federal funds available for broadband grants.  Work was also done to get more equitable 
funding for education.  Kiffmeyer has also been working on structure changes need for a balanced 
budget.  The budget cycle would move from a two year to a four year cycle.  She further stated that 
another change would be to limit contract negations so that they do not exceed the estimated revenues 
budget timeline.  Vajda thanked Kiffmeyer for her time and invited her to attend Hanover’s 125th year 
celebration on October 8th. 
 
Consent Agenda: 
Hagen stated he would like to amend the May 23 Special City Council Meeting minutes to reflect that 
Krysta Mitchell was advocating for the continued aesthetics of the Crow River Heights neighborhoods 
in Hanover.  Warpula inquired why the May 17 minutes did not reflect everyone who spoke regarding 
the Public Works facility.  Hagen explained that though a number of guests spoke, the message each 
guest sent to Council was similar in nature to a point where the brief summary captured all opinions. 
MOTION by Vajda to approve the consent agenda as amended, seconded by Warpula.   

a. Approve Minutes of May 17, 2016 City Council Work Session Meeting 
b. Approve Minutes of May 23, 2016 Special City Council Meeting 
c. Approve Minutes of May 23, 2016 Joint Council/Planning Commission Meeting 
d. Approve Claims as Presented: 

 Claims  $ 103,108.32 
 Payroll   $     7,910.23 
 P/R taxes & Exp $     3,161.09 
 Other Claims  $     2,541.44 
 Total Claims     $ 116,801.08 

e. Res No 06-07-16-69 – Accepting Donation of Kitchen Supplies 
f. Res No 06-07-16-73 – Approving Annual Liquor Licenses 

Motion carried unanimously. 

3



Citizen’s Forum: 
Vonnie Waters 
Waters stated that she came to try and save the trees one last time before Council made their final 
decision.  She explained that she does have one concern regarding the foul balls going into the park or 
shelter if the ballfield is expanded and if older/stronger kids will now be using the field.  She further 
stated that the trees create shade and character and make Hanover a more pleasing town. 
 
Tim Bienias 
Bienias voiced concerns over safety and if the new ballfield will deter families from bringing their kids 
to play at Settlers Park.  He stated when men’s baseball uses the field the area is louder and the potential 
for drinking increases, and inquired if there could be a cap for the softball usage on the field.  He also 
stated that during t-ball many families and children play and sit in the trees near the field.  He also feels 
that a second opinion should be sought out on the soil testing for the potential public works site. 
 
Claudia Pingree 
Pingree stated she was not sure what else to say that has not been said already to keep the trees.  She 
explained that she has heard that the debris on the potential public works site goes down farther than 8 
feet and it would make a better site for a ballfield than a public works building.  She added that the Girl 
Scouts camp in Settlers Park and they, along with others may not be happy to find out the trees are being 
removed. 
 
Janet McDaniel 
McDaniel inquired if companies have been contracted for the ballfield construction.  Kauffman replied 
that they have not, Miller Trucking & Landscaping did provide a quote to Hanover Athletic Association, 
but no one has been contracted yet.  She then inquired if the City planned to hire an urban forester.  
Hagen clarified that Hanover Youth Ball and Hanover Athletic Association are managing this project 
with input from the City.  He further explained that Wright Soil and Water will be kept informed and 
will be asked for assistance to monitor the trees. 
 
Public Hearings 
Plug Technologies – Minnesota Investment Fund Grant 
Kauffman to open the Public Hearing at 7:57 p.m. 
 
Hagen explained that Plug Technologies came to Hanover in 2013 and worked with the EDA and 
Council to gain various incentive programs, with one being the MN Investment Fund Grant.  A contract 
was entered into in order to provide funding.  Plug Technologies created eight new jobs with low to 
moderate income levels.  Hagen further explained that the Public Hearing is a statutory requirement.  
Kauffman inquired if there were any comments from the public.  There were none. 
 
MOTION by Warpula to close the Public Hearing at 8:00 p.m., seconded Hammerseng.  Motion 
carried unanimously. 
 
Unfinished Business: 
Direction on Moratorium Amendment 
Hagen stated that the recent Moratorium ordinance that was passed has held up some of the new home 
permits because they did not meet the minimum footprint requirement.  It has been suggested to amend 
the moratorium ordinance to reduce the minimum requirement.  Kauffman stated that there are currently 
three existing homes based on the same plan that were allowed to be built and inquired as to how the 
City can deny the new home when it was approved for past residents.  Council discussed that they did 

4



drive through the newer developments and do not feel any of the homes do not fit Hanover or are too 
small.  Vajda stated that the City set the requirements and keeps pushing them back and he does not 
want them to push back anymore.  Hammerseng stated that the City should have standards in place that 
do not devalue current homes.  Council gave direction for Hagen to advertise a Public Hearing for the 
July 5th Council meeting to consider an amendment.  
 
Public Works Site Commitment 
Hagen requested Council to commit to a site for the public works facility.  He stated that the approved 
design will not fit on a different lot currently owned by the City, therefore before preparing detailed 
plans a site commitment would be beneficial.  Kauffman gave an overview using past minutes dating 
back several years stating that the site had been approved on three occasions for public works.  He had 
further detail of the various dates and companies that conducted soil testing and stated that the findings 
remained consistent, that the soil would need corrections and that concrete and other construction 
materials were buried below.  He stated the City has been studying the land for 17 years and spent 
around $100,000 plus Staff time.  Hammerseng stated he also read through the minutes and was looking 
for mentions of toxic and hazardous materials and did not see anything to that effect. 
MOTION by Kauffman to approve the Public Works building site on the 5th St NE parcel, seconded by 
Vajda.  Motion carried 4 to 1.  Voting aye:  Kauffman, Hammerseng, Vajda, Zajicek.  Voting nay:  
Warpula.   
 
St. Michael Compost Site Upgrades 
Zajicek explained that he visited the City of St. Michael and gained a better understanding of why the 
new unmanned facility was needed.  He stated that some residents were breaking rules and then yelling 
at staff, which caused staffing difficulties.  The new system will have cameras where residents enter the 
site and at the dump areas, staff will review the tapes if they find items that were dumped that should not 
have been.  Zajicek explained that if a resident borrows out their key fob, they are still the responsible 
party if someone using their fob dumps items that are prohibited.  Council discussed the financial 
impact; Hagen stated the yearly cost would go up from $5,000 to approximately $6,000 plus the cost of 
key fobs.  The cost of the key fobs could be added to Hanover’s fee schedule and would only need to be 
given out to residents who wanted access to the site.  Council gave direction that they support the St. 
Michael compost site upgrade. 
 
Settlers Park Ballfield Redesign Commitment 
Kauffman summarized the ongoing discussions with Hanover Youth Ball and the Hanover Athletic 
Association in regards to the Settlers Park Ballfield redesign.  He explained that this project will come at 
no cost to the City and unfortunately five 150 year old oak trees will need to be removed.  Kauffman 
stated that the newly renovated Historic Bridge required 75 oak trees to be harvested for the deck boards 
and that sometimes harvesting trees can lead to positive outcomes.  Zajicek stated he wants the trees to 
stay, however in talking with residents, they want to know why the City would spend money on land to 
build a ballfield when the City has land at Settlers Park, so despite his personal beliefs to keep the trees 
he has to vote for the greater good of the city.  Hammerseng stated he is fortunate to have a home on a 
lot with many trees, he further stated he was also fortunate to have lived in areas with sports facilities 
when his children were growing up and felt that people move to Hanover because there are activities for 
children. 
 
No Motion to rescind/repeal Council’s previous action related to the Settlers Park Ballfield redesign 
approval. 
 
 

5



New Business: 
None 
 
Reports 

Messner 
• 5th Street water main extension preconstruction meeting will take place Thursday.  The 

contractor expects work to start the second to the last week in June and should take three 
to four days. 

• Conducted the final walk through on the Historic Bridge, found one small issue with a 
load bearing timber that the contractor has already corrected. 

• Working with Hennepin County on the CSAH 19 sidewalk extension for right away and 
maintenance agreement.  Also spoke with Wright County for the extension to the school 
on the Wright County side of the bridge.  They support it but would like the City to pay 
for the curb and relocation of the guardrail.  Messner is meeting with Xcel on the power 
pole issue that currently would block the sidewalk extension. 

• Hanover Hills open house went well.  The residents had questions related to the speeds in 
the neighborhood and how residents aren’t stopping for stop signs. 

 
Vogel 

• Stated that they have been cracking filling, the project is taking more material than 
expected, however the total cost is still less that hiring it out.  The project is taking a little 
longer because of rain delays. 

 
Lindrud 

• Conducted the annual park walk through with the Park Board and inspected which parks 
could house or require new amenities.  The Board will discuss these items in the Comp 
Planning at their next meeting. 

• Concert in the Park is Thursday June 16th at 6:30pm.   
• Flyers listing all the Park Board events were handed out at Hanover Elementary last 

Friday. 
 
Hagen 

• Working on the purchase agreement with Jim Stewart and with WSB for the drainage and 
utility easements needed for the lot split. 

• The Greenhouse building permit is almost complete. 
• Working on the Public Works bonding paper work. 
• Election season is getting busy; Hagen will designate election judges at the next meeting. 

 
Zajicek 

• Will hand out flyers and put up signs for Concert in the Park 
• Inquired if a hidden driveway sign could be installed on Prairie Lane for a resident, 

people speed around the corner and are unable to see when the resident is backing out of 
their driveway. 

• Inquired if electrical could be set up for Concert in the Park for future events. 
 
 
 
 

6



Kauffman 
• Inquired if Vogel could reach out to Sentence to Serve to paint the Historic Bridge 

railing.  Vogel replied that he would follow up with Marty Waters to see if the Boy 
Scouts had committed to painting the railings. 

  
Adjournment 
MOTION by Warpula to adjourn at 9:22 p.m., seconded by Hammerseng.  Motion carried 
unanimously. 
 
 
       APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       __________________________________ 
       Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

7



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 1

Current Period: June 2016

$106,518.32Computer Dollar Amt

Batch Name 06/21/16 PAY
Payment Posted

A-1 OUTDOOR POWER, INC. Ck# 001634E 6/21/2016Refer 1653
Cash Payment $204.75Handheld Blower & Flat NozzleE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 380957 6/13/2016
Cash Payment $19.47Oil - 16ozE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 380957 6/13/2016

$224.22TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICES Ck# 031889  6/21/2016Refer 1631
Cash Payment $252.45Standard Trash - MayE 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos
Invoice G20001595230 5/31/2016

$252.45TotalTransaction Date 6/13/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

ANCOM COMMUNITCATIONS Ck# 031890  6/21/2016Refer 1649
Cash Payment $998.00Minitor VI VHF 5CH Pager (2)E 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 60747 6/9/2016
Cash Payment $120.003 Yr Service from Start-Lite (2)E 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 60747 6/9/2016
Cash Payment $18.00FreightE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 60747 6/9/2016
Cash Payment $100.00Minitor VI Belt Clip (8)E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 60610 6/2/2016
Cash Payment $176.00Minitor VI Battery - IS (8)E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 60610 6/2/2016
Cash Payment $95.00Minitor V Battery - Sales (5)E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 60610 6/2/2016
Cash Payment $15.00FreightE 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 60610 6/2/2016

$1,522.00TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

B.K. AUTO Ck# 031891  6/21/2016Refer 1651
Cash Payment $74.30G11 ServiceE 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 5/11/2016

$74.30TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

BROCK WHITE Ck# 031892  6/21/2016Refer 1654
Cash Payment $2,850.00Roadsaver Sealant (4500)E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 12670963-00 6/7/2016

$2,850.00TotalTransaction Date 6/9/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

CARDMEMBER SRVC (CENTRAL B Ck# 031893  6/21/2016Refer 1657
Cash Payment $15.43FuelE 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels
Invoice 5/25/2016
Cash Payment $173.73Food - Barn FireE 100-42240-208 Training and Instruction
Invoice 5/25/2016

$189.16TotalTransaction Date 6/17/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTERPOINT ENERGY Ck# 031894  6/21/2016Refer 1639
Cash Payment $39.40Fire Department - 4/26/16 - 5/25/16E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 5/27/2016

8



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 2

Current Period: June 2016

Cash Payment $140.76City Hall - 04/26/16 - 5/25/16E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities
Invoice 5/27/2016

$180.16TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

CENTURY LINK Ck# 031895  6/21/2016Refer 1650
Cash Payment $30.32Fire Hall Landline - 05/28/16 - 6/27/16E 100-42280-321 Telephone
Invoice

$30.32TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

CLASSIC CLEANING COMPANY, LL Ck# 031896  6/21/2016Refer 1637
Cash Payment $325.00Monthly Cleaning City Hall - June 2016E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 23783 6/8/2016
Cash Payment $155.00Monthly Cleaning Fire Hall - June 2016E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 6/8/2016

$480.00TotalTransaction Date 6/14/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

COTTENS, INC. Ck# 031897  6/21/2016Refer 1640
Cash Payment $52.4710W30 5 Qt (3)E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 233-23857 5/25/2016
Cash Payment $34.90EP Grease (10)E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 233-22688 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $18.49SwitchE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 233-22688 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $3.69Toggle RedE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 233-22688 5/18/2016

$109.55TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

DRAKE CONSTRUCTION, INC. Ck# 031898  6/21/2016Refer 1639
Cash Payment $1,500.00Landscape - 1044 EmeraldE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $750.00Erosion - 1044 EmeraldE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure - 1044 EmeraldE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016

$3,250.00TotalTransaction Date 6/14/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

FEDERATED CO-OPS INC. Ck# 031899  6/21/2016Refer 1652
Cash Payment $59.90Tordon RTU 1 QTE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 34026423 034 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $148.50Strike Three 2.5 GalE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 34026423 034 5/31/2016

$208.40TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS Ck# 031900  6/21/2016Refer 1648
Cash Payment $18.60Drinking Water 5 GallonsE 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 31431TF 5/2/2016
Cash Payment $9.50Cook & Cooler Rental - June 2016E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 4078472 6/1/2016
Cash Payment $9.50Cook & Cooler Rental - June 2016E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 4078482 6/1/2016

$37.60TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

HANOVER WINE & SPIRITS LLC Ck# 031901  6/21/2016Refer 1634

9



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 3

Current Period: June 2016

Cash Payment $200.00Damage Deposit Hall Rental - 06/10/16E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/13/2016

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 6/13/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

HARDWARE HANK Ck# 031902  6/21/2016Refer 1638
Cash Payment $12.591 Gal Poly Promo SprayerE 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 1313964 5/4/2016
Cash Payment $21.99Shear Lopping BypassE 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials
Invoice 1313964 5/4/2016
Cash Payment $2.23Misc HardwareE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1314516 5/6/2016
Cash Payment $5.39Lions Head - Misc HardwareE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1317727 5/16/2016
Cash Payment $7.29Misc PlumbingE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1317912 5/17/2016
Cash Payment $11.68Water Heater HardwareE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1320489 5/25/2016
Cash Payment $43.58Misc Hardware for Park ShelterE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1321058 5/27/2016
Cash Payment $79.92Potting SoilE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials
Invoice 1321058 5/27/2016
Cash Payment $13.62Misc HardwareE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1322266 5/31/2016

$198.29TotalTransaction Date 6/14/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

HEALTH PARTNERS Ck# 001631E 6/21/2016Refer 1636
Cash Payment $2,716.68Medical Premiums - JulyG 100-21706 Medical/Dental Ins
Invoice 66293226 6/8/2016

$2,716.68TotalTransaction Date 6/14/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

HEINS, DENICE Ck# 001626E 6/21/2016Refer 1646
Cash Payment $120.00Storage - July 2016E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structures
Invoice 6/3/2016

$120.00TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURER Ck# 031903  6/21/2016Refer 1650
Cash Payment $7.00Special Assessments Annual Fee - 2016E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 0616-67 6/6/2016
Cash Payment $6,810.25Assessment Contract - 2016E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 1000077460 6/1/2016

$6,817.25TotalTransaction Date 6/6/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

IDCSERVCO BUISINESS SERVICE Ck# 031904  6/21/2016Refer 1632
Cash Payment $493.87Konica Minolta TonerE 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 475098 5/25/2016

$493.87TotalTransaction Date 6/13/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY Ck# 031905  6/21/2016Refer 1646
Cash Payment $5,882.42SP 5240 Spreader Core TechE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $5,223.39CU 5050i Cutter CoreE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016

10



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 4

Current Period: June 2016

Cash Payment $6,470.05Spider Range SR20PC2 Duo Pump Core TecE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $3,892.124350 Long Telescopic Ram Core TechE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $255.39HRS22 RAM SupportE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $1,422.10Core Hose - 32', Blue w/Couplers (2)E 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $1,422.10Core Hose - 32', Orange w/Couplers (2)E 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016
Cash Payment $217.18FreightE 107-42220-580 Other Equipment
Invoice 226826 5/18/2016

$24,784.75TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

JIM LEUER CONSTRUCTION Ck# 031906  6/21/2016Refer 1640
Cash Payment $1,500.00Landscape - 10411 Kalland AveE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $750.00Erosion - 10411 KallandE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructure - 10411 KallandE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $2,000.00Landscaping - 527 KaylaE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016

$5,250.00TotalTransaction Date 6/14/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

KAUL DESIGN GROUP, LLC Ck# 001623E 6/21/2016Refer 1641
Cash Payment $200.00Priority Maintenance Package - June 2016E 201-41330-437 Other Miscellaneous
Invoice 16-091 6/2/2016

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

KINGHORN COMPANY Ck# 001625E 6/21/2016Refer 1644
Cash Payment $8,086.90Civil Engineering Site Design

Project 208218
E 411-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2212 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $350.00Lot Survey - Staked Borings

Project 208218
E 411-41940-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 2212 5/31/2016

$8,436.90TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC. Ck# 031907  6/21/2016Refer 1655
Cash Payment $85.12Contract Overage Charge - 5/17/16 - 6/16/16E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 2257652 6/10/2016

$85.12TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

MENARDS-BUFFALO Ck# 031908  6/21/2016Refer 1654
Cash Payment $15.99Steel Placer w/hookE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 15146 6/9/2016
Cash Payment $14.9936" Concrete FinishE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 15146 6/9/2016
Cash Payment $27.97Round End FresnoE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 15146 6/9/2016
Cash Payment $5.99Clevis to Thread AdapterE 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor E
Invoice 15146 6/9/2016

$64.94TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

11



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 5

Current Period: June 2016

METRO WEST INSPECTION SERVI Ck# 031909  6/21/2016Refer 1643
Cash Payment $17.5011311 Riverview Rd NEE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 6/13/2016
Cash Payment $91.2011755 Whitetail DrE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 6/13/2016
Cash Payment $1,109.39327 Kayla LnE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 6/13/2016
Cash Payment $1,312.1311590 8th StE 100-42401-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 6/13/2016

$2,530.22TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

MILLER TRUCKING & LANDSCAPE Ck# 001627E 6/21/2016Refer 1647
Cash Payment $25.06Recycled Concrete

Project 208205
E 404-46323-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 122040 5/5/2016
Cash Payment $218.52Agricultural LimestoneE 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials
Invoice 121947 5/3/2016

$243.58TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

MTI DISTRIBUTING Ck# 001624E 6/21/2016Refer 1643
Cash Payment $124.22Mower FiltersE 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 1064533-00 5/17/2016

$124.22TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

NEWMAN, ELIZABETH Ck# 031910  6/21/2016Refer 1651
Cash Payment $200.00Damage Deposit Hall Rental - 6/04/16E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/6/2016

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 6/6/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

NW HOMESCHOOL ATHLETIC CO Ck# 031911  6/21/2016Refer 1653
Cash Payment $200.00Damage Deposit Hall Rental - 6/08/16E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/9/2016

$200.00TotalTransaction Date 6/9/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

PLUNKETTS Ck# 031912  6/21/2016Refer 1645
Cash Payment $139.24Pest ControlE 100-41940-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 5441297 5/16/2016

$139.24TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

PREFERRED BUILDER, INC Ck# 031913  6/21/2016Refer 1641
Cash Payment $1,500.00Landscape - 10759 Settlers LaneE 815-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $750.00Erosion - 10759 Settlers LaneE 811-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016
Cash Payment $1,000.00Infrastructire - 10759 Settlers LaneE 817-48200-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/14/2016

$3,250.00TotalTransaction Date 6/14/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

ULTIMATE SAFETY CONCEPTS, IN Ck# 031914  6/21/2016Refer 1647
Cash Payment $132.00Temple Strap KevlarE 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 166588 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $132.00Lower Strap KevlarE 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 166588 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $10.31FreightE 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts
Invoice 166588 5/31/2016

12



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 6

Current Period: June 2016

$274.31TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

VEIT DISPOSAL SYSTEMS Ck# 031915  6/21/2016Refer 1633
Cash Payment $2,073.20Lions Clean-up Day DumpstersE 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos
Invoice 0000481464 5/19/2016

$2,073.20TotalTransaction Date 6/13/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

VEOLIA WATER NORTH AMERICA Ck# 031916  6/21/2016Refer 1652
Cash Payment $3,983.20Sewer Services - June 2016E 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00057589 5/15/2016
Cash Payment $2,884.38Water Services - June 2016E 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00057589 5/15/2016
Cash Payment $3,983.20Sewer Services - July 2016E 602-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00058414 6/15/2016
Cash Payment $2,884.38Water Services - July 2016E 601-43252-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 00057589 6/15/2016

$13,735.16TotalTransaction Date 6/7/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

VISION STAFFING SOLUTIONS Ck# 031917  6/21/2016Refer 1644
Cash Payment $255.00Temp Help (17 hrs) - Crack fillingE 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees
Invoice 54575 6/9/2016

$255.00TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

WEX BANK Ck# 031918  6/21/2016Refer 1656
Cash Payment $342.30FD FuelE 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels
Invoice 45856859 6/15/2016
Cash Payment $412.59Park FuelE 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels
Invoice 45865124 6/15/2016
Cash Payment $260.89PW FuelE 100-43000-212 Motor Fuels
Invoice 45865124 6/15/2016
Cash Payment $15.31WaterE 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies
Invoice 45865124 6/15/2016
Cash Payment $4.98PW Vehicle WashE 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (GE
Invoice 45865124 6/15/2016

$1,036.07TotalTransaction Date 6/16/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

WILSON, ALISTAIR & JODY Ck# 031919  6/21/2016Refer 1649
Cash Payment $100.00Damage Deposit Shelter Rental - 06/06/16E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimburseme
Invoice 6/6/2016

$100.00TotalTransaction Date 6/6/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TREA Ck# 031920  6/21/2016Refer 1642
Cash Payment $10,824.00Assessment Contract - 2016E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Servi
Invoice 055-16 6/10/2015

$10,824.00TotalTransaction Date 6/3/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

WSB & ASSOCIATES, INC. Ck# 001635E 6/21/2016Refer 1658
Cash Payment $2,164.00General Engineering - 2016E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees
Invoice 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $4,179.00CSAH 19 Sidewalk Extension

Project 208207
E 402-41950-303 Engineering Fees

Invoice 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $112.50Hanover Hills Surface Improvement Project

Project 208219
E 418-43121-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 5/31/2016

13



Payments

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:04 AM
Page 7

Current Period: June 2016

Cash Payment $37.505th Street Watermain Extension
Project 208223

E 401-41950-303 Engineering Fees
Invoice 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $3,675.00MS4 ServicesE 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees
Invoice 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $441.00Bridge 92366 Rehabilitation

Project 208205
E 404-46323-310 Other Professional Servi

Invoice 5/31/2016
Cash Payment $142.00Pavement Management Plan

Project 208203
E 401-41950-303 Engineering Fees

Invoice 5/31/2016

$10,751.00TotalTransaction Date 6/17/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

XCEL ENERGY Ck# 031921  6/21/2016Refer 1655
Cash Payment $2,006.36City Lights - 05/03/16 - 06/02/16E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities
Invoice 503827283 6/3/2016

$2,006.36TotalTransaction Date 6/9/2016 Cash 10100Due 0

Pre-Written Check $106,518.32
Checks to be Generated by the Computer $0.00

Total $106,518.32

Fund Summary
10100  Cash

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $3,000.00
815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $6,500.00
811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $2,250.00
602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $7,966.40
601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $5,768.76
418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $112.50
411 CITY HALL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $8,436.90
404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $466.06
402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $4,179.00
401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $179.50
201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $200.00
107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $25,920.75
100 GENERAL FUND $41,538.45

$106,518.32

14



*Check Summary Register©

HANOVER 06/17/16 11:03 AM
Page 1

June 2016

Name Check Date Check Amt

10100   Cash

Paid Chk#  001623E KAUL DESIGN GROUP, LLC 6/21/2016 $200.00 Priority Maintenance Package -
Paid Chk#  001624E MTI DISTRIBUTING 6/21/2016 $124.22 Mower Filters
Paid Chk#  001625E KINGHORN COMPANY 6/21/2016 $8,436.90 Civil Engineering Site Design
Paid Chk#  001626E Heins, Denice 6/21/2016 $120.00 Storage - July 2016
Paid Chk#  001627E MILLER TRUCKING & LANDSCAP 6/21/2016 $243.58 Recycled Concrete
Paid Chk#  001631E HEALTH PARTNERS 6/21/2016 $2,716.68 Medical Premiums - July
Paid Chk#  001634E A-1 OUTDOOR POWER, INC. 6/21/2016 $224.22 Handheld Blower & Flat Nozzle
Paid Chk#  001635E WSB & ASSOCIATES, INC. 6/21/2016 $10,751.00 General Engineering - 2016
Paid Chk#  031889 ADVANCED DISPOSAL SERVICE 6/21/2016 $252.45 Standard Trash - May
Paid Chk#  031890 ANCOM COMMUNITCATIONS 6/21/2016 $1,522.00 Minitor VI VHF 5CH Pager (2)
Paid Chk#  031891 B.K. AUTO 6/21/2016 $74.30 G11 Service
Paid Chk#  031892 BROCK WHITE 6/21/2016 $2,850.00 Roadsaver Sealant (4500)
Paid Chk#  031893 CARDMEMBER SERVICE 6/21/2016 $189.16 Food - Barn Fire
Paid Chk#  031894 CENTERPOINT ENERGY 6/21/2016 $180.16 City Hall - 04/26/16 - 5/25/16
Paid Chk#  031895 CENTURY LINK 6/21/2016 $30.32 Fire Hall Landline - 05/28/16 
Paid Chk#  031896 CLASSIC CLEANING COMPANY 6/21/2016 $480.00 Monthly Cleaning Fire Hall - J
Paid Chk#  031897 COTTENS, INC 6/21/2016 $109.55 EP Grease (10)
Paid Chk#  031898 DRAKE CONSTRUCTION, INC. 6/21/2016 $3,250.00 Landscape - 1044 Emerald
Paid Chk#  031899 FEDERATED CO-OPS INC. 6/21/2016 $208.40 Strike Three 2.5 Gal
Paid Chk#  031900 FINKEN WATER SOLUTIONS 6/21/2016 $37.60 Cook & Cooler Rental - June 20
Paid Chk#  031901 Hanover Wine & Spirits LLC 6/21/2016 $200.00 Damage Deposit Hall Rental - 0
Paid Chk#  031902 HARDWARE HANK 6/21/2016 $198.29 Potting Soil
Paid Chk#  031903 HENNEPIN COUNTY TREASURE 6/21/2016 $6,817.25 Assessment Contract - 2016
Paid Chk#  031904 IDCSERVCO BUISINESS SERVIC 6/21/2016 $493.87 Konica Minolta Toner
Paid Chk#  031905 JEFFERSON FIRE & SAFETY 6/21/2016 $24,784.75 SP 5240 Spreader Core Tech
Paid Chk#  031906 JIM LEUER CONSTRUCTION 6/21/2016 $5,250.00 Landscape - 10411 Kalland Ave
Paid Chk#  031907 LOFFLER COMPANIES, INC. 6/21/2016 $85.12 Contract Overage Charge - 5/17
Paid Chk#  031908 MENARDS-BUFFALO 6/21/2016 $64.94 Clevis to Thread Adapter
Paid Chk#  031909 METRO WEST INSPECTION SER 6/21/2016 $2,530.22 11311 Riverview Rd NE
Paid Chk#  031910 NEWMAN, ELIZABETH 6/21/2016 $200.00 Damage Deposit Hall Rental - 6
Paid Chk#  031911 NW HOMESCHOOL ATHLETIC C 6/21/2016 $200.00 Damage Deposit Hall Rental - 6
Paid Chk#  031912 PLUNKETTS 6/21/2016 $139.24 Pest Control
Paid Chk#  031913 PREFERRED BUILDER, INC 6/21/2016 $3,250.00 Landscape - 10759 Settlers Lan
Paid Chk#  031914 ULTIMATE SAFETY CONCEPTS, 6/21/2016 $274.31 Lower Strap Kevlar
Paid Chk#  031915 VEIT DISPOSAL SYSTEMS 6/21/2016 $2,073.20 Lions Clean-up Day Dumpsters
Paid Chk#  031916 Veolia Water North America 6/21/2016 $13,735.16 Water Services - July 2016
Paid Chk#  031917 VISION STAFFING SOLUTIONS 6/21/2016 $255.00 Temp Help (17 hrs) - Crack fil
Paid Chk#  031918 WEX BANK 6/21/2016 $1,036.07 PW Vehicle Wash
Paid Chk#  031919 WILSON, ALISTAIR & JODY 6/21/2016 $100.00 Damage Deposit Shelter Rental 
Paid Chk#  031920 WRIGHT COUNTY AUDITOR-TRE 6/21/2016 $10,824.00 Assessment Contract - 2016
Paid Chk#  031921 XCEL ENERGY 6/21/2016 $2,006.36 City Lights - 05/03/16 - 06/02

Total Checks $106,518.32

FILTER: None

15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



06/17/16 11:08 AM

Cash Balances

HANOVER
Page 1

June 2016

Fund
Begin
Month

GL Debits
Month

GL Credits
Month Balance

100 GENERAL FUND $559,766.18 $17,473.45 $133,322.20 $443,917.43

107 FIRE DEPT DONATIONS FUND $53,548.24 $0.00 $25,920.75 $27,627.49

201 EDA SPECIAL REVENUE FUND $96,769.97 $0.00 $1,095.44 $95,674.53

205 EDA BUSINESS INCENTIVE FUND $236,185.38 $633.53 $0.00 $236,818.91

311 2008A GO CIP REFUNDING BOND $33,431.57 $0.00 $0.00 $33,431.57

312 2009A GO IMP REFUNDING BOND $19,002.94 $0.00 $0.00 $19,002.94

313 2010 GO EQUIPMENT CERTIFICATES -$17,850.59 $0.00 $0.00 -$17,850.59

314 2011A GO IMP CROSSOVER REF BD $385,339.10 $6,574.84 $0.00 $391,913.94

401 GENERAL CAPITAL PROJECTS $974,803.35 $0.00 $1,032.00 $973,771.35

402 PARKS CAPITAL PROJECTS $231,046.26 $0.00 $4,753.75 $226,292.51

403 FIRE DEPT CAPITAL FUND $162,448.89 $0.00 $0.00 $162,448.89

404 HISTORICAL CAPITAL PROJ FUND -$26,816.49 $0.00 $613.06 -$27,429.55

407 TIF REDEV DIST #1 $5,651.10 $0.00 $0.00 $5,651.10

411 CITY HALL CAPITAL PROJ FUND $33,038.17 $0.00 $8,436.90 $24,601.27

417 EQUIPMENT CAPITAL FUND $107,774.02 $0.00 $0.00 $107,774.02

418 STREET CAPITAL PROJ FUND $654,299.26 $0.00 $562.00 $653,737.26

601 WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $772,756.85 $2,766.00 $11,912.80 $763,610.05

602 SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND $292,461.42 $5,337.00 $23,189.40 $274,609.02

603 STORM WATER ENTERPRISE FUND $140,863.43 $0.00 $0.00 $140,863.43

611 WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $409,118.60 $0.00 $0.00 $409,118.60

612 SEWER CAPITAL IMP FUND $1,745,441.78 $0.00 $0.00 $1,745,441.78

613 STORM WATER CAPITAL IMP FUND $553,687.02 $0.00 $0.00 $553,687.02

804 SCHENDELS FIELD ESC FUND $147,282.22 $0.00 $0.00 $147,282.22

809 BRIDGES AT HANOVER ESC FUND -$13,476.50 $0.00 $0.00 -$13,476.50

811 EROSION CONTROL ESCROW FUND $46,500.00 $2,000.00 $8,750.00 $39,750.00

815 LANDSCAPE ESCROW FUND $55,500.00 $2,000.00 $9,500.00 $48,000.00

817 INFRASTRUCTURE ESCROW FUND $29,000.00 $1,000.00 $7,000.00 $23,000.00

818 MISC ESCROWS FUND $5,782.15 $500.00 $49.00 $6,233.15

820 BRIDGES TOWNHOMES ESC FUND $3,576.55 $0.00 $0.00 $3,576.55

821 QUAIL PASS 2ND ADD ESCROW FD $11,857.43 $0.00 $0.00 $11,857.43

900 INTEREST $39,680.70 $0.00 $0.00 $39,680.70

$7,748,469.00 $38,284.82 $236,137.30 $7,550,616.52

28



06/17/16 11:09 AM

Revenue Budget by Source - General Fund

HANOVER
Page 1

Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

June
2016 Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

TAXES R 100-31000 Property Taxes - General $0.00 $0.00 $771,014.33 $771,014.33 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31020 Property Taxes - Fire $0.00 $0.00 $112,838.38 $112,838.38 0.00%

TAXES R 100-31800 Franchise Fees $0.00 $3,446.35 $12,000.00 $8,553.65 28.72%

$0.00 $3,446.35 $895,852.71 $892,406.36 0.38%Source Alt Code TAXES

SERVICE R 100-34000 Charges for Services $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34101 City Hall Rent Revenue $175.00 $2,558.59 $8,000.00 $5,441.41 31.98%

SERVICE R 100-34107 Assessment Search Fees $25.00 $150.00 $400.00 $250.00 37.50%

SERVICE R 100-34108 Administrative Fees $50.00 $500.00 $2,000.00 $1,500.00 25.00%

SERVICE R 100-34109 Copies/Faxes $21.25 $88.25 $50.00 -$38.25 176.50%

SERVICE R 100-34207 Fire Protection Services $0.00 $12,414.37 $104,284.82 $91,870.45 11.90%

SERVICE R 100-34403 Recycling Rev/Reimb $0.00 $847.20 $6,000.00 $5,152.80 14.12%

SERVICE R 100-34740 Park & Rec Concessions $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

SERVICE R 100-34780 Park Rental Fees $0.00 $1,335.90 $3,000.00 $1,664.10 44.53%

SERVICE R 100-34940 Cemetery Revenues $0.00 $2,350.00 $2,000.00 -$350.00 117.50%

$271.25 $20,244.31 $125,734.82 $105,490.51 16.10%Source Alt Code SERVICE

MISC R 100-36100 Special Assessments $0.00 $1,030.41 $0.00 -$1,030.41 0.00%

MISC R 100-36200 Miscellaneous Revenues $0.00 $0.49 $0.00 -$0.49 0.00%

MISC R 100-36210 Interest Earnings $0.00 $168.28 $1,000.00 $831.72 16.83%

MISC R 100-36215 Investment Income/Loss $0.00 $4,829.51 $6,000.00 $1,170.49 80.49%

MISC R 100-36230 Contributions and Donations $0.00 $3,300.00 $0.00 -$3,300.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36235 Insurance Dividends $0.00 $0.00 $6,000.00 $6,000.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-36250 Damage Deposits $200.00 $5,618.00 $8,000.00 $2,382.00 70.23%

MISC R 100-36260 Refunds or Reimbursements $0.00 $4.49 $0.00 -$4.49 0.00%

MISC R 100-36290 Sale of Vehicles/Equipment $0.00 $1,702.00 $0.00 -$1,702.00 0.00%

MISC R 100-39203 Transfer from Other Fund $0.00 $19,200.00 $0.00 -$19,200.00 0.00%

$200.00 $35,853.18 $21,000.00 -$14,853.18 170.73%Source Alt Code MISC

LIC PERM R 100-32110 Alchoholic Beverages $10,235.00 $10,335.00 $10,300.00 -$35.00 100.34%

LIC PERM R 100-32180 Other Bus. Licenses/Permits $0.00 $57.00 $100.00 $43.00 57.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32210 Building Permits $6,302.25 $84,682.90 $100,000.00 $15,317.10 84.68%

LIC PERM R 100-32240 Animal Licenses $20.00 $60.00 $100.00 $40.00 60.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32260 Solid Waste Hauler Licenses $0.00 $1,250.00 $1,500.00 $250.00 83.33%

LIC PERM R 100-32270 Rental Dwelling Licenses $0.00 $795.00 $150.00 -$645.00 530.00%

LIC PERM R 100-32280 Other Non-Business Lic/Per $0.00 $13.00 $50.00 $37.00 26.00%

$16,557.25 $97,192.90 $112,200.00 $15,007.10 86.62%Source Alt Code LIC PERM

INTGOVT R 100-33400 State Grants and Aids $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33401 Local Government Aid $0.00 $0.00 $107,496.00 $107,496.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33410 MV Credit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33420 PERA Aid $0.00 $0.00 $339.00 $339.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33422 State Fire Aid $0.00 $2,000.00 $36,000.00 $34,000.00 5.56%

INTGOVT R 100-33426 State Police Aid $0.00 $0.00 $5,500.00 $5,500.00 0.00%

INTGOVT R 100-33610 County Grants/Aid for Roads $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $2,000.00 $149,335.00 $147,335.00 1.34%Source Alt Code INTGOVT

FINES R 100-35100 Court Fines $0.00 $1,247.81 $1,500.00 $252.19 83.19%

$0.00 $1,247.81 $1,500.00 $252.19 83.19%Source Alt Code FINES

$17,028.50 $159,984.55 $1,305,622.53 $1,145,637.98 12.25%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

29



Source
Alt
Code Account Descr

June
2016 Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
06/17/16 11:09 AM

Revenue Budget by Source - General Fund

HANOVER

$17,028.50 $159,984.55 $1,305,622.53 $1,145,637.98 12.25%

30



06/17/16 11:08 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER
Page 1

Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2016
Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

Dept 41110 Council

COUNCIL E 100-41110-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $12,000.00 $12,000.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $744.00 $744.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $174.00 $174.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $450.00 $450.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-306 Dues & Subscriptions $325.00 $6,452.06 $7,000.00 $547.94 92.17%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 0.00%

COUNCIL E 100-41110-437 Other Miscellaneous $42.73 $673.06 $25,202.92 $24,529.86 2.67%

$367.73 $7,125.12 $46,570.92 $39,445.80 15.30%Dept 41110 Council

Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-111 Committee Wages/Mee $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $0.00 $150.00 $150.00 0.00%

BRDCOMM E 100-41330-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $0.00 $100.00 $100.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $4,250.00 $4,250.00 0.00%Dept 41330 Boards and Commissions

Dept 41400 City Administrator

CITYADM E 100-41400-101 Full-Time Employees R $5,175.00 $29,839.55 $67,275.00 $37,435.45 44.35%

CITYADM E 100-41400-121 PERA $388.12 $2,326.10 $5,045.63 $2,719.53 46.10%

CITYADM E 100-41400-122 FICA $320.86 $1,922.99 $4,171.05 $2,248.06 46.10%

CITYADM E 100-41400-123 Medicare $75.04 $449.73 $975.49 $525.76 46.10%

CITYADM E 100-41400-134 Employer Paid Life $30.67 $184.02 $384.00 $199.98 47.92%

CITYADM E 100-41400-151 Med/Dental Insurance $697.46 $4,184.76 $8,400.00 $4,215.24 49.82%

CITYADM E 100-41400-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $410.00 $1,500.00 $1,090.00 27.33%

CITYADM E 100-41400-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $210.51 $500.00 $289.49 42.10%

$6,687.15 $39,527.66 $88,251.17 $48,723.51 44.79%Dept 41400 City Administrator

Dept 41410 Elections

ELECTION E 100-41410-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $5,000.00 $5,000.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-351 Legal Notices Publishin $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

ELECTION E 100-41410-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $0.00 $1,014.40 $1,000.00 -$14.40 101.44%

$0.00 $1,014.40 $8,300.00 $7,285.60 12.22%Dept 41410 Elections

Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

CLERICAL E 100-41430-101 Full-Time Employees R $3,235.20 $18,670.88 $42,059.16 $23,388.28 44.39%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-121 PERA $242.64 $1,455.21 $3,154.44 $1,699.23 46.13%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-122 FICA $200.58 $1,202.95 $2,607.67 $1,404.72 46.13%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-123 Medicare $46.92 $281.39 $609.86 $328.47 46.14%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-134 Employer Paid Life $116.12 $612.66 $1,080.00 $467.34 56.73%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-151 Med/Dental Insurance $700.00 $4,200.00 $8,400.00 $4,200.00 50.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $255.00 $500.00 $245.00 51.00%

CLERICAL E 100-41430-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $17.50 $250.00 $232.50 7.00%

$4,541.46 $26,695.59 $58,661.13 $31,965.54 45.51%Dept 41430 Clerical Staff

Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-260 Uniforms $0.00 $0.00 $300.00 $300.00 0.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $150.00 $1,000.00 $850.00 15.00%

STAFFEXP E 100-41435-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $102.06 $2,000.00 $1,897.94 5.10%

$0.00 $252.06 $3,300.00 $3,047.94 7.64%Dept 41435 Staff Expenses

Dept 41530 Accounting

ACCTING E 100-41530-101 Full-Time Employees R $3,916.80 $22,590.48 $50,918.40 $28,327.92 44.37%

ACCTING E 100-41530-121 PERA $293.76 $1,761.41 $3,818.88 $2,057.47 46.12%
31



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2016
Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 2
06/17/16 11:08 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

ACCTING E 100-41530-122 FICA $225.28 $1,350.73 $3,156.94 $1,806.21 42.79%

ACCTING E 100-41530-123 Medicare $52.69 $315.91 $738.32 $422.41 42.79%

ACCTING E 100-41530-134 Employer Paid Life $81.70 $490.20 $504.00 $13.80 97.26%

ACCTING E 100-41530-151 Med/Dental Insurance $900.00 $5,400.00 $10,800.00 $5,400.00 50.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $410.00 $1,000.00 $590.00 41.00%

ACCTING E 100-41530-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $77.48 $500.00 $422.52 15.50%

ACCTING E 100-41530-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $2,456.80 $3,000.00 $543.20 81.89%

$5,470.23 $34,853.01 $74,436.54 $39,583.53 46.82%Dept 41530 Accounting

Dept 41540 Auditing

AUDITING E 100-41540-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $3,400.00 $29,242.87 $27,400.00 -$1,842.87 106.73%

$3,400.00 $29,242.87 $27,400.00 -$1,842.87 106.73%Dept 41540 Auditing

Dept 41550 Assessing

ASSESS G E 100-41550-310 Other Professional Serv $17,641.25 $17,669.25 $18,000.00 $330.75 98.16%

$17,641.25 $17,669.25 $18,000.00 $330.75 98.16%Dept 41550 Assessing

Dept 41570 Purchasing

PURCHASE E 100-41570-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $1,359.33 $4,000.00 $2,640.67 33.98%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-205 Bank Fees $0.00 $20.00 $100.00 $80.00 20.00%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-207 Computer Supplies $1,590.00 $3,304.88 $3,500.00 $195.12 94.43%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $904.39 $1,695.57 $5,800.00 $4,104.43 29.23%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-322 Postage $215.00 $1,284.44 $1,500.00 $215.56 85.63%

PURCHASE E 100-41570-570 Office Equip and Furnis $0.00 $0.00 $4,000.00 $4,000.00 0.00%

$2,709.39 $7,664.22 $18,900.00 $11,235.78 40.55%Dept 41570 Purchasing

Dept 41600 Computer

COMPUTER E 100-41600-310 Other Professional Serv $365.50 $1,118.73 $4,000.00 $2,881.27 27.97%

$365.50 $1,118.73 $4,000.00 $2,881.27 27.97%Dept 41600 Computer

Dept 41610 City Attorney

CITYATNY E 100-41610-304 Legal Fees $984.80 $9,815.62 $21,786.56 $11,970.94 45.05%

$984.80 $9,815.62 $21,786.56 $11,970.94 45.05%Dept 41610 City Attorney

Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

PLANZONG E 100-41910-310 Other Professional Serv $637.00 $3,315.50 $17,000.00 $13,684.50 19.50%

$637.00 $3,315.50 $17,000.00 $13,684.50 19.50%Dept 41910 Planning and Zoning

Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-210 Operating Supplies (GE $0.00 $154.44 $5,000.00 $4,845.56 3.09%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $31.71 $990.75 $10,000.00 $9,009.25 9.91%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $250.00 $300.00 $50.00 83.33%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-310 Other Professional Serv $619.24 $3,140.24 $8,400.00 $5,259.76 37.38%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-321 Telephone $259.26 $1,562.56 $3,500.00 $1,937.44 44.64%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-325 Taxes $0.00 $213.59 $250.00 $36.41 85.44%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-381 Electric Utilities $568.01 $3,054.68 $9,000.00 $5,945.32 33.94%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-383 Gas Utilities $140.76 $1,770.90 $5,000.00 $3,229.10 35.42%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $252.45 $1,051.62 $2,400.00 $1,348.38 43.82%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-415 Other Equipment Renta $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-520 Buildings and Structure $120.00 $1,041.60 $5,000.00 $3,958.40 20.83%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-560 Furniture and Fixtures $0.00 $0.00 $2,500.00 $2,500.00 0.00%

GOVTBLDG E 100-41940-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $226.16 $1,000.00 $773.84 22.62%

$1,991.43 $13,456.54 $52,850.00 $39,393.46 25.46%Dept 41940 General Govt Buildings/Plant

Dept 41950 Engineer

ENGINEER E 100-41950-303 Engineering Fees $9,563.50 $21,607.25 $25,000.00 $3,392.75 86.43%

$9,563.50 $21,607.25 $25,000.00 $3,392.75 86.43%Dept 41950 Engineer 32



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2016
Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 3
06/17/16 11:08 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

Dept 41960 Insurance

INSURANCE E 100-41960-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $3,784.10 $9,317.50 $5,533.40 40.61%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-152 Worker s Comp Benefit $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

INSURANCE E 100-41960-361 General Liability Ins $10,369.59 $21,496.79 $24,740.10 $3,243.31 86.89%

$10,369.59 $25,280.89 $34,057.60 $8,776.71 74.23%Dept 41960 Insurance

Dept 41970 Legal Publications

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-341 Employment $0.00 $273.78 $250.00 -$23.78 109.51%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-343 Other Advertising $0.00 $39.00 $250.00 $211.00 15.60%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-351 Legal Notices Publishin $153.04 $697.90 $2,000.00 $1,302.10 34.90%

LEGALPUB E 100-41970-354 Recording Fees $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$153.04 $1,010.68 $3,000.00 $1,989.32 33.69%Dept 41970 Legal Publications

Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

HCSHERIFF E 100-42101-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $17,851.24 $71,404.96 $53,553.72 25.00%

$0.00 $17,851.24 $71,404.96 $53,553.72 25.00%Dept 42101 Hennepin County Sheriff

Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

WCSHERIFF E 100-42102-310 Other Professional Serv $8,174.00 $49,460.62 $98,088.00 $48,627.38 50.42%

$8,174.00 $49,460.62 $98,088.00 $48,627.38 50.42%Dept 42102 Wright County Sheriff

Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-103 Part-Time Employees $0.00 $0.00 $34,340.00 $34,340.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-122 FICA $0.00 $0.00 $2,129.00 $2,129.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-123 Medicare $0.00 $0.00 $515.00 $515.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-150 Worker s Comp (GENE $0.00 $3,050.49 $10,000.00 $6,949.51 30.50%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-200 Office Supplies (GENER $0.00 $0.00 $200.00 $200.00 0.00%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-305 Medical and Dental Fee $0.00 $2,074.00 $4,000.00 $1,926.00 51.85%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-306 Dues & Subscriptions $0.00 $355.00 $950.00 $595.00 37.37%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-361 General Liability Ins $2,491.37 $2,491.37 $6,119.40 $3,628.03 40.71%

FIREADMIN E 100-42210-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $21.25 $0.00 -$21.25 0.00%

$2,491.37 $7,992.11 $58,253.40 $50,261.29 13.72%Dept 42210 Fire Dept Administration

Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-221 Equipment Parts $660.31 $1,188.91 $15,500.00 $14,311.09 7.67%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-228 Medical Supplies $0.00 $0.00 $1,500.00 $1,500.00 0.00%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $77.54 $850.00 $772.46 9.12%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-260 Uniforms $0.00 $604.26 $4,500.00 $3,895.74 13.43%

FIREEQUIP E 100-42220-580 Other Equipment $0.00 $762.50 $5,000.00 $4,237.50 15.25%

$660.31 $2,633.21 $27,350.00 $24,716.79 9.63%Dept 42220 Fire Dept Equipment

Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-208 Training and Instructio $173.73 $1,030.64 $7,500.00 $6,469.36 13.74%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $729.50 $3,000.00 $2,270.50 24.32%

FIRETRNG E 100-42240-331 Travel Expenses $0.00 $1,511.23 $1,500.00 -$11.23 100.75%

$173.73 $3,271.37 $12,000.00 $8,728.63 27.26%Dept 42240 Fire Dept Training

Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

FIREVEH E 100-42260-212 Motor Fuels $417.32 $1,064.64 $5,000.00 $3,935.36 21.29%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $74.30 $6,865.71 $9,000.00 $2,134.29 76.29%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-240 Small Tools and Minor $0.00 $53.57 $2,000.00 $1,946.43 2.68%

FIREVEH E 100-42260-323 Radio Units $0.00 $2,820.00 $7,465.00 $4,645.00 37.78%

$491.62 $10,803.92 $23,465.00 $12,661.08 46.04%Dept 42260 Fire Vehicles

Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-215 Shop Supplies $0.00 $132.27 $1,650.00 $1,517.73 8.02%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G -$87.86 $1,023.10 $3,500.00 $2,476.90 29.23%33



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2016
Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 4
06/17/16 11:08 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-321 Telephone $30.32 $183.08 $800.00 $616.92 22.89%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-325 Taxes $0.00 $0.00 $175.00 $175.00 0.00%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-381 Electric Utilities $264.45 $1,176.42 $5,000.00 $3,823.58 23.53%

FIREBLDG E 100-42280-383 Gas Utilities $39.40 $1,313.09 $3,000.00 $1,686.91 43.77%

$246.31 $3,827.96 $14,125.00 $10,297.04 27.10%Dept 42280 Fire Stations and Bldgs

Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-124 Fire Pension Contributi $0.00 $2,000.00 $36,000.00 $34,000.00 5.56%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-125 Other Retirement Contr $0.00 $0.00 $11,133.58 $11,133.58 0.00%

FIRERELIEF E 100-42290-301 Auditing and Acctg Ser $0.00 $0.00 $6,500.00 $6,500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $2,000.00 $53,633.58 $51,633.58 3.73%Dept 42290 Fire Relief Association

Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

INSPADMN E 100-42401-310 Other Professional Serv $2,530.22 $22,840.59 $35,000.00 $12,159.41 65.26%

$2,530.22 $22,840.59 $35,000.00 $12,159.41 65.26%Dept 42401 Building Inspection Admin

Dept 42700 Animal Control

ANIMCTRL E 100-42700-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $500.00 $500.00 0.00%Dept 42700 Animal Control

Dept 42800 Cemetery

CEMETERY E 100-42800-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $1,023.00 $2,500.00 $1,477.00 40.92%

$0.00 $1,023.00 $2,500.00 $1,477.00 40.92%Dept 42800 Cemetery

Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-101 Full-Time Employees R $8,201.61 $47,280.74 $106,604.16 $59,323.42 44.35%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-102 Full-Time Employees O $0.00 $497.38 $1,000.00 $502.62 49.74%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-103 Part-Time Employees $1,950.75 $4,285.71 $15,000.00 $10,714.29 28.57%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-121 PERA $615.12 $3,722.46 $7,995.31 $4,272.85 46.56%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-122 FICA $613.64 $3,338.00 $6,609.46 $3,271.46 50.50%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-123 Medicare $143.53 $780.74 $1,545.76 $765.02 50.51%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-134 Employer Paid Life $155.16 $930.96 $1,584.00 $653.04 58.77%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-142 Unemployment Benefit $0.00 $23.79 $500.00 $476.21 4.76%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-151 Med/Dental Insurance $1,600.00 $9,600.00 $19,200.00 $9,600.00 50.00%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-208 Training and Instructio $0.00 $1,379.30 $1,500.00 $120.70 91.95%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-212 Motor Fuels $637.41 $2,316.11 $7,000.00 $4,683.89 33.09%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-215 Shop Supplies $143.73 $1,408.44 $2,500.00 $1,091.56 56.34%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $702.29 $2,182.64 $6,000.00 $3,817.36 36.38%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-226 Sign Repair Materials $170.70 $170.70 $1,500.00 $1,329.30 11.38%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-240 Small Tools and Minor $336.11 $423.76 $5,000.00 $4,576.24 8.48%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-260 Uniforms $9.97 $61.95 $2,000.00 $1,938.05 3.10%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-310 Other Professional Serv $21.25 $1,271.25 $16,000.00 $14,728.75 7.95%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-321 Telephone $138.06 $861.97 $2,000.00 $1,138.03 43.10%

PUBWRKS E 100-43000-325 Taxes $0.00 $120.00 $200.00 $80.00 60.00%

$15,439.33 $80,655.90 $203,738.69 $123,082.79 39.59%Dept 43000 Public Works (GENERAL)

Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

HWYROAD E 100-43100-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 43100 Hwys, Streets, & Roads

Dept 43121 Paved Streets

PAVSTRTS E 100-43121-224 Street Maint Materials $8,230.44 $20,474.99 $50,000.00 $29,525.01 40.95%

$8,230.44 $20,474.99 $50,000.00 $29,525.01 40.95%Dept 43121 Paved Streets

Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets

UNPAVSTS E 100-43122-224 Street Maint Materials $3,308.98 $3,308.98 $10,000.00 $6,691.02 33.09%

$3,308.98 $3,308.98 $10,000.00 $6,691.02 33.09%Dept 43122 Unpaved Streets 34



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2016
Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 5
06/17/16 11:08 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

SNOWREMO E 100-43125-224 Street Maint Materials $0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 0.00%Dept 43125 Ice & Snow Removal

Dept 43160 Street Lighting

STLGHTG E 100-43160-381 Electric Utilities $2,120.97 $10,679.73 $27,000.00 $16,320.27 39.55%

$2,120.97 $10,679.73 $27,000.00 $16,320.27 39.55%Dept 43160 Street Lighting

Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

REFDISPO E 100-43240-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $2,073.20 $2,073.20 $2,000.00 -$73.20 103.66%

$2,073.20 $2,073.20 $2,000.00 -$73.20 103.66%Dept 43240 Waste (refuse) Disposal

Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

RECYCLING E 100-43245-384 Refuse/Garbage Dispos $3,154.23 $15,722.67 $35,000.00 $19,277.33 44.92%

$3,154.23 $15,722.67 $35,000.00 $19,277.33 44.92%Dept 43245 Recycling: Refuse

Dept 45186 Senior Center

SRCENTER E 100-45186-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $1,178.74 $8,000.00 $6,821.26 14.73%

$0.00 $1,178.74 $8,000.00 $6,821.26 14.73%Dept 45186 Senior Center

Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

PARKS E 100-45200-212 Motor Fuels $648.67 $648.67 $3,000.00 $2,351.33 21.62%

PARKS E 100-45200-220 Repair/Maint Supply (G $623.55 $1,723.35 $6,000.00 $4,276.65 28.72%

PARKS E 100-45200-225 Landscaping Materials $298.44 $298.44 $7,000.00 $6,701.56 4.26%

PARKS E 100-45200-310 Other Professional Serv $0.00 $0.00 $6,800.00 $6,800.00 0.00%

PARKS E 100-45200-381 Electric Utilities $264.25 $876.25 $2,000.00 $1,123.75 43.81%

PARKS E 100-45200-400 Repairs & Maint Cont ( $140.32 $366.41 $3,000.00 $2,633.59 12.21%

PARKS E 100-45200-440 Programs $906.23 $1,891.47 $1,000.00 -$891.47 189.15%

PARKS E 100-45200-580 Other Equipment $380.00 $4,995.74 $7,000.00 $2,004.26 71.37%

$3,261.46 $10,800.33 $35,800.00 $24,999.67 30.17%Dept 45200 Parks (GENERAL)

Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

LIBRARY E 100-45500-437 Other Miscellaneous $0.00 $4,357.03 $10,500.00 $6,142.97 41.50%

$0.00 $4,357.03 $10,500.00 $6,142.97 41.50%Dept 45500 Libraries (GENERAL)

Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

DMGDEPRF E 100-48205-810 Refunds & Reimbursem $1,300.00 $4,299.25 $9,000.00 $4,700.75 47.77%

$1,300.00 $4,299.25 $9,000.00 $4,700.75 47.77%Dept 48205 Damage Deposit Refunds

Dept 49360 Transfers Out

TRNSFERS E 100-49360-700 Transfers (GENERAL) $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%Dept 49360 Transfers Out

Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

TRANSIT E 100-49800-310 Other Professional Serv $250.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%

$250.00 $250.00 $1,000.00 $750.00 25.00%Dept 49800 Transit (GENERAL)

$118,788.24 $515,154.23 $1,309,122.55 $793,968.32 39.35%Fund 100 GENERAL FUND

35



Dept
Abbrev Account Descr

June
2016
Amt

2016
YTD Amt

2016 YTD
Budget

2016 YTD
Balance

%YTD
Budget

Page 6
06/17/16 11:08 AM

Expenditure Budget Report - General Fund

HANOVER

$118,788.24 $515,154.23 $1,309,122.55 $793,968.32 39.35%

36



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
A meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 21st day of June, 2016.   
 
The following Council Members were present:   
 
The following Council Members were absent:  
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by ________ and seconded by __________. 
 

RESOLUTION NO 06-21-16-74 
 

APPROVING LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 
 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota 
hereby appoints the following individuals as Election Judges for the 2016 Primary and General Elections 
at a rate of $10.00 per hour: 
 
Diane (Abby) Peterson  Lois Mahler   Anne Engel 
Marion Marshall   Mary Beth Olson  Lynette Nordberg   
Sara Biren    Dee Ruter   Kathy Robinson 
Dawn Spraungel   Deb Redpath   Vicki Ceass 
John Vajda    Brian Hagen   Liz Lindrud  
      
BE IT FURTHUR RESOLVED, that the City Administrator is authorized to appoint additional or 
replacement election judges as needed. 
 
Council members voting in favor:   

Opposed or abstained:   

Adopted by the city Council this 21st day of June, 2016 

 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

   
 

37



CITY OF HANOVER 
COUNTIES OF WRIGHT AND HENNEPIN 

STATE OF MINNESOTA 
 
A meeting of the City Council of the City of Hanover, Minnesota, was called to order by Mayor 
Kauffman at 6:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers of the City Hall, in the City of Hanover, Minnesota, on 
the 21st day of June, 2016.   
 
The following Council Members were present:   
 
The following Council Members were absent:  
 
A motion to adopt the following resolution was made by ________ and seconded by __________. 
 

RESOLUTION NO 06-21-16-75 
 

APPROVING LIQUOR LICENSE RENEWALS 
 

WHEREAS, the following establishment has provided all necessary application materials, proof of 
insurance, and fees prior to forwarding said application to the State of Minnesota for approval: 
 
 1.  Hanover Athletic Association  3.2% Malt Liquor On Sale 
 
WHEREAS, the Sheriff has reviewed and supports the renewal. 
  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council does hereby approves the liquor 
license described above for a period of one year beginning July 1, 2016. 
 
Council members voting in favor:   

Opposed or abstained:   

Adopted by the city Council this 21st day of June, 2016 

 

APPROVED BY: 
 
 
       ___________________________________ 
ATTEST:      Chris Kauffman, Mayor 
 
 
____________________________________ 
Brian Hagen, City Administrator 

   
 

38



INFORMATION MEMO 

Dangerous Properties 
 
 

Learn about the tools available to cities under state law to remedy unhealthy and dangerous 
properties such as those damaged by fire or explosion, unsecured vacant buildings, garbage houses, 
and otherwise hazardous buildings or excavations. Contains several model resolutions for action and 
a link to a model ordinance. 

RELEVANT LINKS: I. Types of Dangerous Properties  
 
 
 
LMC information memo, 
Public Nuisances. 
 

Cities sometimes need to deal with properties that are dangerous because of 
conditions that are hazardous or pose health risks. The city’s response to 
these properties depends on the severity of the problem. On one end of the 
spectrum, a nuisance ordinance may be effective in dealing with problems 
like junk vehicles or tall grass. At the other end of the spectrum, the 
statutory hazardous building process may be the appropriate tool to raze or 
tear down a hazardous building. The city will need to evaluate the different 
options and determine which tool best fits the needs of the particular 
situation.  

 This memo will cover the following dangerous property situations and the 
tools available under state law that may help to remedy them: 

 • Hazardous excavations. 
• Buildings damaged by fire or explosion. 
• Unsecured vacant buildings. 
• Garbage houses. 
• Hazardous buildings. 

 This memo is an overview of how to deal with the situations mentioned 
above. It is intended as a way to start looking at the city’s options, as well as 
a reference for when the city moves forward with a selected option. Often, 
the laws are quite detailed or technical, so it is imperative to work with the 
city attorney. The city attorney will be able to provide specific legal advice 
in a particular situation. In some situations, like the hazardous building 
process, the city will need to use its city attorney in the related court 
proceedings. This memo is intended only as general information and should 
not replace the specific legal advice of the city attorney.  

39

http://www.lmc.org/
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/public_nuisances.pdf


 

II. Lawfully entering private property 
 The procedures covered in this memo involve private property. Private 

property rights are afforded constitutional protections, so it is important that 
the city take appropriate steps to ensure these rights are respected. Whenever 
this memo mentions entering private property for an inspection, repair work, 
or other purpose, the principles outlined in this section will apply.  

U.S. Const. 4th amendment. 
Camara v. Municipal Court, 
387 U.S. 523, 280 Minn. 390 
(1967).  
 
LMC information memo, 
Entering Private Property for 
Public Works Purposes.  

Generally, in order to lawfully enter private property to inspect or correct a 
situation, the city must either obtain voluntary consent from the owner or an 
administrative search warrant. This is because the Fourth and Fourteenth 
Amendments to the U.S. Constitution prohibit unreasonable searches and 
seizures of persons or property. The United States Supreme Court has held 
that these Fourth Amendment guarantees apply to city inspections. If a city 
unlawfully enters private property, it may be a violation of these 
constitutional rights. 

 In many circumstances, seeking consent is the simplest way to gain access to 
property. If the city has consent to enter the property, it may do so. Consent 
must be voluntarily given by a person who has the authority to consent, such 
as the owner or occupant of the property. It is important that the person 
giving consent is aware of the purpose and scope of the inspection before 
consenting. It is preferable to obtain the consent in writing.  

 If the city does not or cannot obtain the owner’s consent to enter the 
property, another way to enter the property is to obtain an administrative 
search warrant. An administrative search warrant is issued by a judge and 
allows designated people to enter the property for certain purposes specified 
in the warrant. An administrative search warrant removes the need for 
consent.  

Camara v. Municipal Court, 
387 U.S. 523 (1967).  

In order to obtain an administrative search warrant, the city must show the 
judge there is “probable cause” as to why its request to enter private 
property is justified. The application for a warrant must describe the city’s 
inspection program and establish how the particular requested inspection 
falls within the scope of the ordinance. 

 After an administrative search warrant is issued, it is important for the city to 
provide notice to the property owner or occupant. The notice should identify 
the nature and scope of the inspection or work, the date, and the time it will 
be performed. If the city must return to the property to continue work or to 
follow up on an inspection or code violation, it is also important to notify the 
property owner or occupant of the date and time the city will return. 

 It may be possible to lawfully enter private property without consent or a 
warrant, such as when an emergency exists. The city attorney will be able to 
provide specific legal advice on whether a warrant or consent is necessary.  

40

https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/articleiv
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=2317094957132474824&q=387+us+523&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=2317094957132474824&q=387+us+523&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/enteringprivateproperty.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/enteringprivateproperty.pdf
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=2317094957132474824&q=Camara+v.+Municipal+Court,+387+U.S.+523+(1967)&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002


 

III.  Due process 
U.S. Const., amendments V, 
XIV. Minn. Const., art.1. 
Minn. Const., art. 1, § 7.  
Village of Zumbrota v. 
Johnson,  280 Minn. 390, 161 
N.W.2d 626 (1968). 
Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 
U.S. 319, 96 S. Ct. 893 
(1976). 

Due process is also something the city should consider when using any of 
the procedures discussed in this memo. Both the federal and state 
constitutions provide that no person may be deprived of life, liberty, or 
property without due process of law. The two basic concepts of due process 
are: 1) notice to interested parties, such as the property owner, and 2) an 
opportunity to be heard by a person or group who has the authority to make 
a decision on the matter. The opportunity to be heard must be at a 
meaningful time and in a meaningful manner. Unless there is an emergency 
situation, notice and an opportunity to be heard should be provided without 
restraint, because a decision that is adverse to the property owner results in a 
loss of property without compensation.  

Mathews v. Eldridge, 424 
U.S. 319, 96 S. Ct. 893 
(1976). 

Due process is not a fixed standard, but rather is flexible and should be 
tailored to the particular situation. Some statutes provide particular notice 
and hearing requirements that help to clarify what due process is required 
under particular statutes. If there are no statutory notice or hearing 
requirements, or the requirements provided are minimal, that does not mean 
that due process does not apply. Rather, that means that the city, with the 
help of the city attorney, should determine if due process applies and, if so, 
how the city will satisfy these requirements.  

 In some instances in this memo, the discussion of the law does not prescribe 
due process requirements, but it seems that the principles of due process 
should apply. At these points, the memo makes suggestions on how to 
satisfy due process. Keep in mind that these are only suggestions and the 
city should work with the city attorney to determine the best way to handle 
due process requirements in a particular situation. 

 

IV. Hazardous excavations 
Minn. Stat. § 463.25. State law provides a specific process to deal with hazardous excavations. A 

hazardous excavation exists in the following situations: 
 • An excavation for building purposes is left open for more than six 

months without proceeding with the erection of a building thereon, 
whether or not completed. 

• Any excavation or basement is not filled to grade or otherwise protected 
after a building is destroyed, demolished, or removed. 

 
 
 
See Section II - Entering 
private property. 

The statute does not give direction to the council on how to determine if a 
particular excavation meets the statutory definition. An inspection of an 
excavation may provide relevant information. It is a good idea to take notes 
and photographs of what is observed at the inspection. The city should 
consider how it will lawfully enter the property to make the inspection.  

41

https://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/articlev
http://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/constitution.amendmentxiv.html
http://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/articlei
http://www.law.cornell.edu/constitution/
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5326405640407016871&q=280+Minn.+390&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5326405640407016871&q=280+Minn.+390&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://caselaw.lp.findlaw.com/scripts/getcase.pl?navby=case&court=us&vol=424&page=319
http://caselaw.lp.findlaw.com/scripts/getcase.pl?navby=case&court=us&vol=424&page=319
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.25


 
 
 

While the council is considering whether the excavation is hazardous, it may 
be helpful to consider any reports, photos, or other information related to the 
property. It is a good idea for the council to document its decision and the 
reasons that support that decision. In the case of a court challenge, the 
documented decisions and supporting reasons may help the city defend its 
determination. 

 
 
See Section III - Due process. 

Although the law does not strictly require the property owner to be notified 
that the issue of filling or protecting a hazardous excavation will be 
discussed at a meeting, it is a good idea to notify the property owner that the 
issue will be discussed and to allow him or her a chance to speak on the 
issue. By doing so, there will be a stronger argument that the property 
owner’s due process rights have been respected.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.25. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.17. 
Model Resolution Ordering a 
Hazardous Excavation to be 
Filled, Protected, or Built 
Upon. 

If the council determines that the excavation is hazardous, the council may 
order that the excavation be filled or protected, or that the erection of the 
building begin forthwith if the excavation is for building purposes. The order 
is generally done by resolution. While the law does not specify what should 
be included in the order, it should likely be in writing and should, at a 
minimum: 

 • Include the grounds or basis for the order. 
• Specify the necessary work to be done. 
• State that if the land owner does not comply with the order within 15 

days after notice is served, the council will have the work done. 
• State the city will specially assess any costs incurred by the city doing 

the work against the property.  
Minn. Stat. § 463.25. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.17, subd. 2. 
 
LMC information memo, 
Newspaper Publication. 

The order must be served upon the owner of record or the owner's agent if 
an agent is in charge of the building or property, any occupying tenant, and 
all lien-holders of record. Service is completed in the same manner as a 
service of summons in a civil action. If the owner cannot be found, the order 
must be served by posting it at the main entrance to the building or, if there 
is no building, in a conspicuous place on the property. In addition to posting, 
the order must be published for four weeks in the official newspaper of the 
municipality; if there is no official city newspaper, then the order is 
published in a legal newspaper in the county. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.25. 
See Section II - Entering 
private property. 
Minn. Stat. § 471.345. 

If the owner of the land does not comply with the order within 15 days after 
it is served, the council must have the excavation filled to grade or protected. 
If the city needs to do the work, the city needs to determine the best way to 
get the work done. In some circumstances, city employees may be able to do 
the work. In other situations, the city may need to hire someone. Depending 
on the work to be done, the competitive bidding laws may apply. 

42

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.25
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingExcavationFilled.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingExcavationFilled.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingExcavationFilled.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingExcavationFilled.docx
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.25
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/newspaperpublication.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.25
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=471.345


Minn. Stat. § 463.25. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.21. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.161. 
Minn. Stat. §§ 429.061-
429.081. 
LMC information memo, 
Special Assessment Toolkit. 

The costs incurred by the city may be charged against the property as a 
special assessment. The city council may provide that the assessment may be 
paid in five or fewer equal annual installments with interest at 8 percent per 
year. It is a good idea to keep an accurate record of the incurred costs so the 
city can accurately assess them. An alternative to using a special assessment 
is to recover the costs by obtaining a court judgment against the property 
owner.  

 

V. Buildings damaged by fire or explosion 
 Sometimes, there is a fire or explosion in a city that damages a building. If 

the owner does not make the necessary repairs to the property, the 
responsibility sometimes may fall to the city. If the building was insured, it 
may be an option for the city to receive a portion of the insurance 
settlements from the damage if the city has established an escrow or trust 
account for this purpose. 

 

A. Establishing the account 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subds. 
12, 14. 

In order to obtain a portion of the insurance settlements from fire or 
explosion damage, the city must first establish an escrow or trust account. It 
is important to note that the city cannot obtain insurance settlement proceeds 
for losses that happened before the effective date of the account.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subds. 
12, 14.  
 
Model Resolution 
Establishing a Fire Escrow 
Account 

The escrow or trust account is established by passing a resolution. The next 
step is to notify the commissioner of commerce, in writing, that the city has 
established a trust or escrow account and intends to uniformly apply this 
section with respect to all property located within the city. The city should 
also request to be added to the list of cities that maintain these accounts. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subds. 
12, 14. 
Department of Commerce 
List of “Insurance Escrow by 
Municipalities for Debris 
Removal.” 

The commissioner keeps a list of all cities with this type of account. When 
the commissioner receives notice that a city has established an account, the 
commissioner will add the city to the list. Then, the commissioner will 
distribute the list to all insurance companies transacting property insurance 
in this state, indicating the addition of the new city. The addition of the city 
to the list is effective on the date specified by the commissioner in the 
amendment. The commissioner must notify the city and insurance 
companies of the effective date of the addition, which cannot be less than 30 
days after the receipt of notice by the insurance company.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 
13(b). 
 
 
 
See Section V-B 
Discontinuing the account. 

Once on the list, cities must make a written report to the commissioner on 
the extent of the city’s use of the escrow account. The report must also 
include the effect of the use of the law on arson fires in the city. The report 
must be filed with the commissioner no later than 90 days after the two-year 
anniversary of the city’s placement on the list and, thereafter, no later than 
90 days after each subsequent two-year period. 

43

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.25
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/sagtext.pdf
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/sagtext.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/EstablishingFireEscrow.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/EstablishingFireEscrow.docx
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
http://mn.gov/commerce/insurance/ins-companies/information-resources/fire-debris-removal-list.jsp
http://mn.gov/commerce/insurance/ins-companies/information-resources/fire-debris-removal-list.jsp
http://mn.gov/commerce/insurance/ins-companies/information-resources/fire-debris-removal-list.jsp
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50


 If the commissioner does not receive the written report, the commissioner 
will provide a written reminder notice. If the commissioner does not receive 
the report within 30 days after providing the written reminder, the city will 
be treated as having made a written request to be deleted.  

 

B. Discontinuing the account 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subds. 
13, 15. 

If the city no longer wishes to have the escrow or trust account and wants to 
be removed from the commissioner’s list, the city must notify the 
commissioner in writing that it wants to be deleted from the list. The city 
may stop operating the escrow or trust account for more than six months 
after notifying the commissioner. The city must give 30 days written notice 
before it stops using the account. After the commissioner receives the city’s 
written request, the commissioner shall prepare and distribute an amendment 
to the list, indicating the deletion. The deletion shall be effective on the date 
specified by the commissioner in the amendment. The commissioner must 
then notify the city and insurance companies of the effective date of the 
deletion, which must be not less than 30 days after the insurance companies 
receive notice. A city must continue to use its escrow or trust account for 
any loss which occurs before the effective date of the deletion.  

 

C. Funding and using the account 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 2. Once the city has set up the account, it cannot use it unless there is an 

insured building in the city that has been damaged by fire or explosion. Even 
then, the account is only used after the statutory process is followed.  

 

1. Funding the account 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 2.  When a property owner files a claim for a loss to his or her insured real 

property due to fire or explosion and a final settlement is reached on the 
loss, the insurer must withhold from payment of the settlement the lesser of 
25 percent of the actual cash value of the insured’s real property at the time 
of the loss or 25 percent of the final settlement. (The property owner with 
insurance is known as “the insured”). For purposes of this law, a final 
settlement is the determination of the amount owed to the insured by any of 
the following means: 

 • Acceptance of a proof of loss by the insurer. 
• Execution of a release by the insured. 
• Acceptance of an arbitration award by both the insured and the insurer. 
• A court judgment. 

44

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50


Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subds. 
9, 11. 

The final settlement amount cannot include the payment of policy proceeds 
for personal property or contents damage, or for additional coverage not 
contained in the fire coverage portion of the fire insurance policy. Further, 
this process applies only to final settlements that exceed 49 percent of the 
insurance on the insured real property. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 
16. 

The requirement to withhold portions of the insurance settlement proceeds 
does not apply if all of the following conditions occur:  

 • Within 30 days after agreement on a final settlement between the insured 
and the insurer, the insured has filed with the insurer evidence of a 
contract to repair. 

• The insured consents to the payment of funds directly to the contractor 
performing the repair services. 

• Upon receipt of the contract to repair, the insurer gives notice to the 
municipality in which the property is situated that there will not be a 
withholding under this section because of the repair contract. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 
16.  

Funds released under these circumstances may be forwarded only to a 
contractor performing the repair services on the insured property. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 
17. 

If the insured and the insurer have agreed on the demolition costs or the 
debris removal costs as part of the final settlement of the real property 
insured claim, the insurer shall withhold the largest of the following sums: 

 • The agreed cost of demolition or debris removal. 
• Twenty-five percent of the actual cash value of the insured real property 

at the time of loss. 
• Twenty-five percent of the final settlement of the insured real property 

claim. 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 2.  At the time funds are withheld, the insurer must give notice of the 

withholding to the treasurer of the city where the property is located, the 
insured, and any bank or lender that has a lien on the property and that is 
named on the insurance policy. If the settlement resulted from a court 
judgment, notice must also be provided to the court where the judgment was 
entered. The notice must include:  

 • The identity and address of the insurer. 
• The name and address of each policyholder, including any bank or 

lender that holds a mortgage on the property. 
• The location of the insured real property. 
• The date of loss, policy number, and claim number. 
• The amount of money withheld. 

45

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 
16.   

• A statement that the city may have the withheld amount paid into a trust 
or escrow account established for the purposes of this section if it shows 
cause within 30 days that the money should be withheld to protect the 
public health and safety; otherwise, the withheld amount shall be paid to 
the insured at the expiration of 30 days. 

• An explanation of the provisions of this section and a verbatim 
reproduction of the statutory subdivision regarding exceptions to 
withholding. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 3.  In order for the city to put the withheld funds into its escrow or trust account 
and retain the funds, the chief fire official or other authorized city 
representative must prepare an affidavit that says that the insured’s damaged 
structure violates specified health and safety standards, and this requires the 
escrow of the withheld amount as surety for the repair, replacement, or 
removal of the damaged structure. This affidavit constitutes cause for 
escrowing the withheld amount.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 3. Where there is a settlement on the insurance claim, the affidavit must be sent 
to the insurer, the insured, and any banks or lenders who hold a mortgage on 
the property. Once the insurer receives the affidavit, the insurer must 
forward the withheld amount to the city treasurer. The insurer must also 
provide notice of the forwarding of funds to the insured and any bank or 
lender that holds a mortgage on the property. If there was a court judgment 
on the insurance claim, the affidavit and notice of forwarding the funds must 
also be given to the court that entered the judgment.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 4. 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 5. 

When the city receives the withheld funds from the insurance company, the 
city treasurer must record the information and the date the money was 
received. The treasurer must immediately deposit the money into the 
established trust or escrow account. Money deposited into the account must 
not be commingled with city funds. The account may be interest-bearing. 
Any interest earned on money placed in a trust or escrow account shall be 
retained by the municipality to defray expenses incurred under this section. 

 

2. Releasing funds from the account 
 Once the money is in the city trust or escrow account, there are several 

situations that trigger releasing those funds.  
 

a. Releasing funds to bank or lender 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 4. If the mortgage on the insured property is in default, the bank or lender who 

holds that mortgage may make a written request to the city for the funds. 
 Not later than 10 days after receiving the written request, the treasurer must 

release any or all of the proceeds to the extent necessary to satisfy the 
outstanding mortgage. 

46

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50


 
b. Releasing funds to the insured  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 6. There are two situations described in statute where the funds in the account 
must be immediately forwarded to the insured. The first situation is where 
the chief fire official or other authorized city representative receives or is 
shown reasonable proof that the damaged or destroyed portions of the 
insured structure have been repaired or replaced. However, if not all repairs 
or replacement have been made, the city may withhold the amount that is 
needed to complete repair or replacement. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 6. The second situation is when the chief fire official or other authorized city 
representative receives or is shown reasonable proof that the damaged or 
destroyed structure and any and all remnants of the structure have been 
removed from the land where the structure was located. This may be done 
by the owner or any other person. The work must have been done in 
compliance with local code requirements.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 6. There is also a third situation when funds must be immediately released, but 
in this situation, the funds are forwarded to a third-party contractor and not 
the insured. In this situation, the funds deposited into the escrow or trust 
account must be immediately forwarded to the contractor when the chief fire 
official or other authorized city representative receives or is shown 
reasonable proof that the insured has entered into a contract to perform 
repair, replacement, or removal services on the property. It must also be 
shown that the insured consents to payment of the funds directly to the 
contractor performing the services. These funds may be forwarded only to a 
contractor performing services on the insured property.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 7. As mentioned in the three situations above, the insured must show 
reasonable proof in order to have the funds released or forwarded. The law 
provides three situations that will be considered reasonable proof: 

 • Originals or copies of pertinent contracts, invoices, receipts, and other 
similar papers showing both the work performed or to be performed and 
the materials used or to be used by all contractors performing repair, 
replacement, or removal services with respect to the insured real 
property. 

• An affidavit executed by the contractor who has performed the greatest 
amount of repair or replacement work on the structure, or who has done 
most of the clearing and removal work if structure repair or replacement 
is not to be performed. The contractor shall attach to the affidavit all 
pertinent contracts, invoices, and receipts and shall swear that these 
attached papers correctly indicate the nature and extent of the work 
performed to date by the contractor and the materials used. 

• An inspection of the insured real property to verify that repair, 
replacement, or clearing has been completed. 

47

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50


 

3. Use of retained proceeds 
Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 8. If reasonable proof is not received or shown to the chief fire official or other 

authorized city representative within 45 days after the funds were received 
by the treasurer, the city must use the funds to secure, repair, or demolish the 
damaged or destroyed structure and clear the property in question, so that 
the structure and property are in compliance with local code requirements 
and applicable ordinances of the municipality. Any unused portion of the 
retained funds must be returned to the insured. 

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 8. 
See Minn. Stat. ch. 299F. 
Minn. Stat. ch. 463. Section 
IX Hazardous buildings. 

It may be possible that during these 45 days, the city may have secured, 
repaired, or demolished the damaged or destroyed structure under another 
law or ordinance such as the hazardous building laws. If this is the case, 
after the 45 days lapse, the city may release any special assessment placed 
on the property and reimburse itself from the retained funds.  

Minn. Stat. § 65A.50, subd. 8. No more than 15 percent of the funds used by the municipality may be 
attributed to the city’s administrative expenses. Any administrative expenses 
must be directly related to the actions authorized by the statute.  

 

VI. Securing vacant buildings  
Minn. Stat. § 463.251.  

 
 

 

A vacant or unoccupied building may be hazardous because it is open to 
trespass and has not been secured. If the building could be made safe by 
being secured, the council may order that the building be secured. “Secure” 
is defined to include installing locks, repairing windows and doors, boarding 
windows and doors, posting “no-trespassing” signs, installing exterior 
lighting or motion-detecting lights, fencing the property, and installing a 
monitored alarm or other security system. This is not an exhaustive list, so 
the city may take other appropriate actions to secure a building.  

 
 
 
See Section II - Entering 
private property. 

State statutes do not give direction to cities on how to determine if a building 
is hazardous due to it being open to trespass. Council determination on 
whether a building is vacant or unoccupied and open to trespass should be 
based on city inspections, notes, photos, or other information related to the 
property. The city should also consider how to lawfully enter the property 
for inspection purposes.  

LMC information memo, 
Sanitary Sewer Toolkit. 
 
 

It is a good idea for the council to document its decision and the reasons that 
support that decision. In the case of a court challenge, the documented 
decisions and supporting reasons may help the city defend its determination.  

See Section III - Due process. Although the law does not strictly require the property owner to be notified 
that the issue of securing the building will be discussed at a meeting, it is a 
good idea to notify the property owner that the issue will be discussed and to 
allow him or her a chance to speak on the issue. 

48

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=299f
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=65A.50
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
http://lmc.org/media/document/1/sanitarysewertoolkit.pdf


 By doing so, there will be a stronger argument that the property owner’s due 
process rights have been respected. Also, notice to the property owner of the 
problem may lead to self-remedy before an order is necessary.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.251, subd. 
2. 
Model Resolution Ordering 
the Securing of a Vacant 
Building. 

If the council determines the building is hazardous and should be secured, 
the council adopts an order by resolution. The council must serve notice of 
the order to the owner of record (or the owner’s agent), the taxpayer 
identified in the property tax records for that parcel, the holder of the 
mortgage or sheriff’s certificate, and any neighborhood association for the 
neighborhood where the building is located that has requested notice. The 
notice of the order is served by delivering or mailing a copy to these people 
at their last known address. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.251, subd. 
2. 

The notice of the order should be in writing and must include a statement 
that: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 582.031, subd. 
1(b). 
Minn. Stat. § 582.032, subd. 
7. 

• Informs the owner and the holder of any mortgage or sheriff’s certificate 
of the requirements that the owner or holder of the certificate has 6 days 
to comply with the order or provide the council with a reasonable plan 
and schedule to comply with the order and that costs may be assessed 
against the property if the person does not secure the building. 

• Informs the owner and the holder of any mortgage or sheriff’s certificate 
that, within 6 days of the order being served, the person may request a 
hearing before the governing body challenging the governing body’s 
determination that the property is vacant or unoccupied and hazardous. 

• Notifies the holder of any sheriff’s certificate of the holder’s duty under 
section 582.031, subdivision 1, paragraph (b), to enter the premises to 
protect the premises from waste and trespass if the order is not 
challenged or set aside and there is prima facie evidence of abandonment 
of the property as described by law. 

 While the law does not require it, it is a good idea to include the grounds or 
basis for ordering the building to be secured. It may also be a good idea to 
specify what actions need to be taken to secure the building. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.251, subd. 
3.  

The owner or a holder of a sheriff’s certificate of sale may then comply with 
the order, provide the council with a reasonable plan and schedule to comply 
with the order, or request a hearing on the order. If the owner does not take 
one of these actions within 6 days after the order is served, the council must 
ensure that the building is properly secured.  

 
Minn. Stat. § 471.345. 

If the city must secure the building, the city council will need to determine 
the best way to get the work done. In some circumstances, city employees 
may be able to do the work. In other situations, the city council may need to 
hire someone to do the work. Depending on the work that needs to be done, 
the competitive bidding laws may apply. 

49

https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.251
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingSecuringOfVacantBuilding.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingSecuringOfVacantBuilding.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingSecuringOfVacantBuilding.docx
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=582.031
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=582.031
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=582.032
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=582.032
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=471.345


Minn. Stat. § 463.251, subd. 
3. Minn. Stat. § 463.21. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.161. Minn. 
Stat. §§ 429.061-.081. 
LMC information memo, 
Special Assessment Toolkit. 

The costs of securing the building may be charged against the real estate as a 
special assessment. The city council may provide that the assessment may be 
paid in five or fewer equal annual installments with interest at 8 percent per 
year. It is a good idea to keep an accurate account of the incurred costs so 
the city can assess them. An alternative to using a special assessment is to 
recover the costs by obtaining a court judgment against the property owner. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.251, subds. 
1, 3. Minn. Stat. § 473.121, 
subd. 2. 
 

In the metropolitan area, the council may work with neighborhood 
associations to develop and implement plans to secure vacant buildings in a 
timely and cost-effective manner. (A neighborhood association is an 
organization recognized by the city as representing a neighborhood within 
the city). The city may use rehabilitation and revitalization funds in this 
scenario. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.251, subd. 
4. 
LMC Model Ordinance 
Regarding Securing of 
Vacant Buildings. 

The statutes do not provide a process for emergency securing of a vacant 
building. However, a city may adopt an ordinance that would allow the city 
to secure the building in an emergency situation when a vacant building 
presents an immediate danger to the health and safety of persons in the 
community.  

 

VII. Tenant remedies action 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395, 
subds. 1, 2. 

Sometimes a landlord does not maintain his or her property in a safe or 
sanitary manner. When the tenant cannot get the landlord to make necessary 
repairs or corrections to a residential building, the law gives a process that 
would allow the city to step in and use the courts to force the landlord to 
take action. (An action may also be brought by a tenant, a housing-related 
neighborhood organization, or other unit of government, but this section will 
focus on cities bringing an action). It is not mandatory that cities take action, 
but in some situations it may be desirable for the city to choose to get 
involved.  

Minn. Stat. § 504B.471. 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.465. 

The purpose of these laws is to provide additional remedies to tenants. The 
purpose of the laws is not to allow a landlord to “get out of” his or her 
financial liability for repairs or maintenance of the building. The provisions 
of these laws cannot be waived by a tenant in a lease or other agreement. 

 

A. Bringing a tenant’s remedies action 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395. The city may bring a tenant’s remedies action when there is one or more of 

the following: 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.161, subd. 
1(a)(1). 
 

• A violation of any state, county, or city health, safety, housing, building, 
fire prevention, or housing maintenance code. 

• The premises and all common areas are not fit for the intended use.  
• The premises are not kept in reasonable repair during the term of the 

lease (unless the disrepair has been caused by the tenant). 

50

https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/sagtext.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=473.121
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=473.121
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.251
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/securing_vacant_bldgs.doc
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/securing_vacant_bldgs.doc
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.471
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.465
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.161


 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.161, subd. 
1(a)(2). 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.171, subd. 
1. 

• The landlord allows controlled substances, prostitution or prostitution-
related activities, unlawful use or possession of a firearm, or stolen 
property or property obtained by robbery to be in the building, including 
the common area and areas near the building.  

• A violation of an oral or written rental agreement, lease, or contract. 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395. The action is brought in district court in the county where the building is 

located. 
 

B. Inspection 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395, subd. 
3.  
Minn. Stat. § 504B.185. 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.381. 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.385. 
Minn. Stat. §§ 504B.395-
.451. 

A residential tenant or a housing-related neighborhood organization may 
request an inspection by the city if the city is charged with enforcing the 
code that is claimed to be violated. The city must perform the inspection. 
After the inspection, the inspector must inform, in writing, the landlord or 
the landlord’s agent and the person or organization requesting the inspection 
(if someone other than the city) of any code violations that were discovered. 
A reasonable period of time must be given to correct the violations. A 
tenant’s remedies action cannot be brought until the time to correct the 
violations has expired and satisfactory repairs to remove the code violations 
have not been made. However, an action may be brought if the residential 
tenant, or neighborhood organization with the written permission of a tenant, 
alleges the time allowed for repairs is excessive. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.395, subd. 
4. 

The law requires that a residential tenant or housing-related neighborhood 
organization must give 14 days’ notice to the landlord of certain violations 
before an action is brought. The law does not specify that the city must give 
similar notice so the city should work with the city attorney in determining 
whether notice should be provided. The notice requirements may be waived 
if the court finds that the landlord cannot be located despite diligent efforts.  

 

C. Complaint and summons 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395. If the time for repairs has expired and repairs have not been made, a tenant’s 

remedies action may be started in the court system by serving a complaint 
and summons. The summons is issued by a judge or court administrator. 

 The complaint must be verified and must describe the facts that show there 
is a violation (or violations) in the building. The complaint must state the 
relief that is sought. If it is known, the complaint must also list the rent due 
each month from each dwelling unit within the residential building. 

 If the violation is of any state, county, or city health, safety, housing, 
building, fire prevention, or housing maintenance code applicable to the 
building, the complaint must be accompanied by one of the following: 

51

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.171
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.171
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.185
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.381
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.385
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395


 • A copy of the official inspection report by a department of health, 
housing, or buildings, certified by the custodian of records of that 
department stating: 
o When and by whom the residential building was inspected. 
o What code violations were recorded. 
o That notice of the code violations has been given to the landlord.  

• A statement that a request for inspection was made to the appropriate 
state, county, or municipal department, that demand was made on the 
landlord to correct the alleged code violation, and that a reasonable 
period of time has elapsed since the demand or request was made. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.401. 
Minn. Stat. §§ 504B.395-
.471. 

Upon receiving a complaint, the court administrator must prepare a 
summons. The summons must specify the time and place of the hearing to 
be held on the complaint and must also state that if at the time of the 
hearing, the landlord does not submit and establish a defense, judgment may 
be entered in favor of the person or organization bringing the complaint. 

 The hearing must be scheduled not less than seven nor more than 14 days 
after receipt of the complaint by the court administrator. 

 The summons and complaint must be served upon the landlord or the 
landlord’s agent not less than seven nor more than 14 days before the 
hearing. Service shall be by personal service upon the defendant pursuant to 
the Minnesota Rules of Civil Procedure. If personal service cannot be made 
with due diligence, service may be made by affixing a copy of the summons 
and complaint prominently to the residential building involved, and mailing 
at the same time, a copy of the summons and complaint by certified mail to 
the last known address of the landlord. 

 

D. Answer and defenses 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.411. At or before the time of the hearing, the landlord may answer the complaint 

in writing. Defenses that are not contained in a written answer must be orally 
pleaded at the hearing before any testimony is taken. No delays in the date 
of hearing may be granted to allow time to prepare a written answer or reply 
except with the consent of all parties. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.415. State law provides three defenses that the defendant may rely on:   
 • The violation or violations alleged in the complaint do not exist or that 

they have been removed or remedied. 
• The violations have been caused by the willful, malicious, negligent, or 

irresponsible conduct of a complaining residential tenant or anyone 
under the tenant’s direction or control. 

52

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.401
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.411
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.415


 • A residential tenant of the residential building has unreasonably refused 
entry to the landlord or the landlord’s agent to a portion of the property 
for the purpose of correcting the violation, and that the effort to correct 
was made in good faith. 

 

E. Trial and judgment 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.421. If issues of fact are raised, there will be a trial without a jury. The court may 

grant a postponement of the trial on its own motion or at the request of a 
party if it determines that postponements are necessary to enable a party to 
obtain necessary witnesses or evidence. A postponement cannot be for more 
than 10 days unless all appearing parties consent. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.425. If the court finds that the complaint has been proven, it may, in its 
discretion, take any of the following actions, either alone or in combination:  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.445. 

• Order the landlord to remedy the violation or violations if the court is 
satisfied that correction action will be prompt. 

• Order the tenant to remedy the violation or violations and deduct the cost 
from his or her rent subject to terms that the court determines. 

• Appoint an administrator with the powers described by law and direct 
that rents due be deposited with the administrator and that the 
administrator uses the rents collected to remedy the violation or 
violations by paying the debt service, taxes, and insurance, and 
providing the services necessary to the ordinary operation and 
maintenance of the residential building, which the landlord is obligated 
to provide but fails or refuses to provide. 

• Lower rent to reflect the extent to which any uncorrected violations 
impair the residential tenants’ use and enjoyment of the property.  

• After termination of administration, the court may continue the 
jurisdiction over the residential building for a period of one year and 
order the landlord to maintain the residential building in compliance with 
all applicable state, county, and city health, safety, housing, building, fire 
prevention, and housing maintenance codes. 

• The court may grant any other relief it deems just and proper, including a 
judgment against the landlord for reasonable attorney fees, not to exceed 
$500, in the case of a prevailing residential tenant or neighborhood 
organization. There is no similar limit in the law for cities. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.431. A copy of the judgment must be personally served on every residential and 
commercial tenant of the residential building whose obligations will be 
affected by the judgment. If, with due diligence, personal service cannot be 
made, service may be made by posting a notice of the judgment on the 
entrance door of the residential tenant’s dwelling or commercial tenant’s 
unit and by mailing a copy of the judgment to the residential tenant or 
commercial tenant by certified mail. 

53

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.421
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.425
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.431


Minn. Stat. § 504B.435. If an administrator was appointed by the court, the landlord’s right to collect 
rent is void and unenforceable from the time the court signs the order for 
judgment until the administration is terminated. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.441. City 
View Apartments v. Silvia 
Lopez Sanchez, No. C2-00-
313 (Minn. Ct. App. Aug. 1, 
2000) (unpublished decision). 
 

A residential tenant may not be evicted, have increased lease obligations, or 
have services decreased if the action is a penalty for the complaint. If there 
is an eviction or change in obligations or services within 90 days after a 
complaint made in good faith is filed, the landlord has the burden of proving 
that it was not in response to the complaint.  

 

F. Administrators 
 An administrator may be a person, local government unit or agency, other 

than a landlord of the building, the inspector, the complaining residential 
tenant, or a person living in the complaining residential tenant’s dwelling 
unit. If a state or court agency is authorized by statute, ordinance, or 
regulation to provide persons or neighborhood organizations to act as 
administrators under this section, the court may appoint them to the extent 
they are available. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.445. A person or neighborhood organization appointed as administrator must post 
bond to the extent of the rents expected by the court to be necessary to be 
collected to correct the violation or violations; there is no similar 
requirement for a city to post bond. Administrators appointed from 
governmental agencies shall not be required to post bond. 

 The court may allow a reasonable amount from the rent to be spent for the 
services of administrators and the expense of the administration. When the 
administration terminates, the court may enter judgment against the landlord 
in a reasonable amount for the services and expenses incurred by the 
administrator. 

 

1. The administration 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.445. State law outlines the powers of an administrator. The administrator may: 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.381. 
Minn. Stat. §§ 504B.395-
.471. 

• Collect rents from tenants, evict tenants for nonpayment of rent or other 
cause, enter into leases for vacant dwelling units, rent vacant commercial 
units with the consent of the landlord, and exercise other powers 
necessary and appropriate to carry out the purposes of the tenant’s 
remedies laws. 

 • Contract for the reasonable cost of materials, labor, and services 
necessary to remedy the violation or violations found by the court and 
for the rehabilitation of the property to maintain safe and habitable 
conditions, and disburse money for these purposes from available funds. 

54

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.435
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.441
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0008/313.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0008/313.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0008/313.htm
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.381
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B


 • Provide services to the residential tenants that the landlord is obligated to 
provide but refuses or fails to provide, and pay for them from available 
funds. 

 • Petition the court, after notice to the parties, for an order allowing the 
administrator to encumber the property to secure funds to the extent 
necessary to cover certain costs and to pay for the costs from funds 
derived from the encumbrance. 

 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.445. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 334.16, subd. 
1(b). Minn. Stat. ch. 429. 
LMC information memo, 
Special Assessment Toolkit. 

• Petition the court, after notice to the parties, for an order allowing the 
administrator to receive funds made available by the federal, state, or 
city government to the extent necessary to cover certain costs and pay 
for them from funds derived from this source. (The city recovers these 
disbursements by special assessments on the piece of property in 
question. The assessment, interest, and any penalties are to be collected 
as special assessments made for other purposes). 

 When considering whether to grant the administrator funds, the court must 
consider factors relating to the long-term economic viability of the dwelling, 
including: 

 • The causes leading to the appointment of an administrator. 
• The repairs necessary to bring the property into code compliance. 
• The market value of the property. 
• Whether present and future rents will be sufficient to cover the cost of 

repairs or rehabilitation. 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.445. Before any other expenses may be paid, the administrator must first contact 

and pay for residential building repairs and services necessary to keep the 
residential building habitable. If sufficient funds are not available for paying 
other expenses, such as taxes and mortgage payments, after paying for the 
necessary repairs, the landlord is responsible for the other expenses. 

 The administrator may not be held personally liable in the performance of 
duties under this section except for misfeasance, malfeasance, or 
nonfeasance of office. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.451. The Minnesota Housing Finance Agency may establish a revolving loan 
fund to pay the administrative expenses of receivership administrators for 
properties for occupancy by low- and moderate-income persons or families. 
The landlord must repay the payments made from the fund.  

55

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=334.16
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=334.16
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/sagtext.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.451


 

2. Ending administration 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.445. 
 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.425(e). 

There are a few ways to end an administration. One way is for the 
administrator or any party to petition the court, after notice to all parties, for 
an order terminating the administration on the grounds that the available 
funds are insufficient to remedy the violations. This may be done at any time 
during the administration. If the court finds for the person or entity bringing 
the petition, the court will terminate the administration and enter a judgment 
that the residential tenant may reduce rent to the extent that the uncorrected 
violations impair the resident’s use and enjoyment of the property.  

Minn. Stat. § 504B.455. Another option is for the administrator, after notice to all parties, to petition 
the court to be relieved of duties. The petition must include the reasons for 
the request. The court may, in its discretion, grant the petition and discharge 
the administrator after approving the accounts.  

 A third option is for a party, after notice to the administrator and all other 
parties, to petition the court to remove the administrator. If the party shows 
good cause, the court must order the administrator removed and direct the 
administrator to immediately deliver to the court an accounting of 
administration. The court may make any other order necessary and 
appropriate under the circumstances. 

Minn. Stat. § 504B.461. 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.445, subd. 
5. 

The administration must be terminated if the city secures certification that 
the violations have been remedied or if there is a court order to terminate the 
administrator. If the administration is terminated for either of these reasons, 
the administrator must submit to the court an accounting of receipts and 
disbursements of the administration together with copies of all bills, receipts, 
and other memoranda pertaining to the administration. Where appropriate, 
the administrator must also submit a certification by an appropriate 
governmental agency indicating that the violations found by the court to 
exist at the time of judgment have been remedied. 

 The administrator must also comply with any other order the court makes as 
a condition of discharge. 

 Upon approval by the court of the administrator’s accounts and compliance 
by the administrator with any other orders that the court made as a condition 
of discharge, the court must discharge the administrator from any further 
responsibilities.  

Minn. Stat. § 504B.455. If the administrator is removed, the court shall appoint a new administrator. 
All parties must be given an opportunity to be heard.  

56

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.425
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.455
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.461
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.445
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.455


 

G. Emergency tenant remedies action 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.381. 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395. 

State law also has provisions for emergency tenant remedies action. Any 
person authorized to bring a tenant remedies action (e.g., tenant, housing-
related neighborhood organization, city, etc.) may petition the court for 
relief in cases of emergencies involving the loss of running water, hot water, 
heat, electricity, sanitary facilities, or other essential services or facilities 
that the landlord is responsible for providing. The petition should be filed in 
the county where the building is located. This law does not apply to 
emergencies that are a result of the deliberate or negligent act or omission of 
a residential tenant or someone acting under the direction or control of the 
tenant. 

 The person or organization making the petition must present a verified 
petition to the district court that contains the following information: 

 • A description of the premises and the identity of the landlord. 
• A statement of the facts and grounds that demonstrate the existence of an 

emergency caused by the loss of essential services or facilities.  
• A request for relief.  

 At least 24 hours before going to the court, the person making the petition 
must attempt to notify the landlord of his or her intent to seek emergency 
relief. An order may be granted without notice to the landlord if the court 
finds that reasonable efforts, as set forth in the petition or by separate 
affidavit, were made to notify the landlord but that the efforts were 
unsuccessful. 

 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.425. 

The court may order relief in the same manner as a regular tenant’s remedies 
action. The person bringing the petition must serve the order on the landlord 
personally or by mail as soon as practicable.  

 
Minn. Stat. § 504B.395, 
subds. 3, 4. 

Unlike a regular tenant’s remedies action, a person is not required to wait a 
reasonable time after an inspection to seek relief. Also, the 14-day notice 
requirements for a regular tenant’s remedies action do not apply. 

 

VIII. Garbage houses 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 145A.04, subd. 
8. 

Sometimes cities find there is a building in the city that poses a public health 
threat. These types of buildings are often referred to as “garbage houses,” 
but the laws apply to any property, not just residential property. The danger 
from garbage houses comes from conditions inside of the building that pose 
some sort of threat to a person’s health rather than the physical, structural 
condition of the building itself.  

57

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.381
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.425
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=504B.395
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.04
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.04


 In order to be a “garbage house,” the conditions have to be rather severe. For 
example, a couple bags of smelly garbage in the kitchen probably do not 
constitute a garbage house. Here are some examples of conditions in garbage 
houses: 

 • Accumulation of garbage, furniture, debris, litter, or other items that 
hinder the ability to move freely in the house and/or open doors.  

• Significant accumulation of human or animal fecal matter or other waste.  
• Significant rodent or insect infestation. 

 These are not the only conditions that would cause a building to be 
considered a public health threat. Rather, this list is an example of the types 
of things that might be present in a garbage house. 

Minn. Stat. § 145A.01-.12. Under the “Local Public Health Act,” a board of health may take actions to 
remove and abate these public health nuisances. The governing board of a 
city or county may establish a community health board. However, most 
cities do not have their own community health board. Therefore, dealing 
with garbage houses is often up to the county community health board and 
not the city.  

Minn. Stat. § 145A.04, subd. 
8(a). Minn. Stat. § 145A.02. 
 
 

One of the board’s duties is to deal with threats to public health. If there is a 
threat to the public health, such as a public health nuisance (e.g., any activity 
or failure to act that adversely affects the public health), a source of filth, or 
a cause of sickness found on any property, the community health board (or 
its agent) must order the owner or occupant of the property to remove or 
abate the threat. Generally, if the owner, occupant, or agent does not comply 
with the requirements of the notice, then the board of health (or its agent) 
must remove or abate the nuisance, source of filth, or cause of sickness 
described in the notice. 

 

A. Local ordinances  
Minn. Stat. § 145A.05, subds. 
1, 7.  
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 145A.05, subd. 
9. 

Both the county and the city have some authority to adopt ordinances related 
to public health. The county board may adopt ordinances for all or part of its 
jurisdiction to regulate actual or potential threats to the public health, 
including ordinances to define public health nuisances and provide for their 
prevention or abatement. 

 
 
 
 
 

However, these ordinances cannot be preempted by, be in conflict with, or 
be less restrictive than standards set out in state laws or rules. The city 
council may also adopt ordinances relating to the public health authorized by 
law or by an agreement with the commissioner of health. The ordinances 
cannot conflict with or be less restrictive than ordinances adopted by the 
county board or state law.  

58

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145A
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.04
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.04
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.02
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.05
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.05
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.05
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145a.05


Minn. Stat. § 145A.11, subd. 
4. 

If there is a community health board, it may recommend local ordinances 
pertaining to community health services to the city council or county board 
within its jurisdiction. 

 

IX. Hazardous buildings 
Minn. Stat. §§ 463.15-.261. Minnesota law provides authority and a process to deal with hazardous 

buildings. This process allows the city to order a property owner to repair or 
remove a hazardous condition, or in extreme cases, to raze the building. If 
the owner does not do the work, the city may do so and charge the costs 
against the property as a special assessment. The law requires that the court 
oversee or be involved during most of the process. As such, it is very 
important to work with the city attorney. The city attorney will be needed to 
draft documents, file court papers, appear in court, and provide specific legal 
advice throughout the process. 

Minn. R. Ch. 1300. Minn. R. 
1300.0180.  

Where applicable, the Minnesota State Building Code requires that all 
unsafe buildings and structures must be repaired, rehabilitated, demolished, 
or removed according to the statutory hazardous building provisions.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.26. 
City of Minneapolis v. 
Meldahl, 607 N.W.2d 168, 
171 (Minn.App.2000). 
 

Hazardous building laws are supplementary to other statutory and charter 
provisions. This means cities may enact and enforce ordinances on the same 
subject. Any ordinance that is passed must allow for due process and cannot 
contradict state law. The city should seek advice from the city attorney if it 
wishes to adopt this type of ordinance. 

 

A. Characteristics of a hazardous building 
Minn. Stat. § 463.15, subds. 
2, 3. 

State law defines a hazardous building or hazardous property as, “any 
building or property which because of inadequate maintenance, dilapidation, 
physical damage, unsanitary condition, or abandonment constitutes a fire 
hazard or a hazard to public safety or health.” A building is defined as, “any 
structure or part of a structure.” For purposes of this memo, the phrase 
hazardous building will be used to include hazardous property and 
structures.  

Ukkonen v. City of 
Minneapolis, 280 Minn. 494, 
160 N.W.2d 249, 250 (1968). 

Determining whether a building is hazardous depends on the particular facts 
of each situation. For example, in one opinion where the Minnesota supreme 
court upheld a city’s order to raze a hazardous building, the court described 
the building in question as having the following conditions:  

 • Unoccupied. 
• Badly deteriorated sections of concrete block foundation. 
• Decayed and rotted wooden foundation sills. 
• Broken, deteriorating, and falling siding. 
• Rotted and collapsing roof cornice. 
• Large holes in asphalt roof covering. 

59

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145A.11
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=145A.11
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=1300
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=1300.0180
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/rules/?id=1300.0180
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.26
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0003/c6991490.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0003/c6991490.htm
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.15
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.15
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=17257607143216547849&q=160+N.W.2d+249&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=17257607143216547849&q=160+N.W.2d+249&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002


 • Evidence of roof leaks. 
• Large holes in the plaster finish of walls and ceilings. 
• Many broken window lights. 
• Damaged or destroyed window sashes. 
• Dry water traps in wash basin and water closet resulting in open sewers.  
• Paper, lumber, wood lath, plaster, and debris littering interior of 

building. 
 These are not the only conditions that would cause a building to be 

considered “hazardous.” Rather, these are examples of the types of things 
that might be present in a hazardous building. While this example shows that 
there were many problems with this building, there is no formula to 
determine how many problems make a building hazardous. Again, that 
depends on the particular situation. 

 

B. Identifying a hazardous building 
 
 
 
 
 
See Section II - Entering 
private property. 

If the city believes there is a building that may be hazardous, it is a good 
idea for the city to gather and document information about the building. An 
inspection of the property may provide information that may help the 
council determine if the building is hazardous. While inspecting the 
property, it is helpful to take detailed notes and photographs of what was 
observed. Because there are constitutional limitations on entering private 
property, the city should consider how it will lawfully enter the property to 
make the inspection.  

 
LMC information memo, 
Meetings of City Councils.  
Rostamkhani v. City of St. 
Paul, 645 N.W.2d 479 (Minn. 
Ct. App. 2002). Vue v. City of 
St. Paul,  No. 09-316 (Minn. 
Ct. App. April 13, 
2010)(unpublished opinion). 
Minn. Stat. § 463.15. 
Ellis v. City of Minneapolis, 
No. A07-2440 (Minn. Ct. 
App. Jan. 20, 2009) 
(unpublished opinion). 

Before the council orders a hazardous condition to be repaired or removed, 
the council must first make a determination that the building is hazardous. 
This must be done during an open city council meeting. At the meeting, it is 
advisable that the city council consider all the relevant evidence it has, such 
as any inspection notes or reports, photographs of the property, code 
violations, and any other information related to the property, including any 
information provided by the property owner or occupant. It is also advisable 
to keep in mind the statutory definition and consider how the evidence 
relates to this definition. There is no rigid formula in how the determination 
must be structured, but they should be sufficient to make the owner aware of 
the basis of the decision. 

Rostamkhani v. City of St. 
Paul,  645 N.W.2d 479, 484-
85 (Minn. Ct. App. 2002). 
CUP Foods, Inc. v. City of 
Minneapolis, 633 N.W.2d 
557, 562 (Minn.App.2001). 

The decision to repair or remove a hazardous condition, or to raze a 
building, must not be arbitrary or capricious. A decision is arbitrary or 
capricious if it is unreasoned and does not consider the facts and 
circumstances of the situation. Said another way, the city’s decision must be 
reasoned and supported by substantial evidence. 

60

http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/meetings_of_city_councils.pdf
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0206/c7011757.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0206/c7011757.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/1004/opa090531-0413.pdf
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/1004/opa090531-0413.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.15
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=12057263147059870347&q=Ellis+v.+City+of+Minneapolis&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0206/c7011757.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0206/c7011757.htm
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=7881383663963656204&q=CUP+Foods,+Inc.+V.+Minneapolis&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=7881383663963656204&q=CUP+Foods,+Inc.+V.+Minneapolis&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002


 Tessmer v. City of St. Paul, 
No. A07-2349 (Minn. Ct. 
App. Dec. 16, 2008) 
(unpublished opinion).  
 

It is a good idea for the council to keep a detailed record of the discussion, 
the evidence considered, and the ultimate decision that was reached based on 
the evidence considered. This record will help the city defend its decision if 
it is later challenged in court.  

 
See Section III - Due process. 
 

Although the law does not explicitly require the property owner to be 
notified of the council consideration of the property, it is advisable to take 
steps to ensure the property owner’s due process rights are respected. One 
way to do this may be to notify the property owner that the issue will be 
discussed and to allow the owner a chance to speak with the council and 
provide any evidence or information that he or she may have. Notice to 
tenants as well as lien-holders may also be advisable. Notice may also lead 
to self-remedy of the hazardous conditions. 

 

C. Removal or repair by consent 
Minn. Stat. § 463.151. 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 463.15, subd. 4. 

One method of dealing with a hazardous condition or building is to approach 
the property owner to ask him or her to voluntarily repair or remove the 
hazardous condition or to raze the hazardous building. If the owner will not 
or cannot voluntarily repair or remove the hazardous condition, the city may 
obtain written consent of all owners of record, occupying tenants, and all 
lien-holders of record that allows the city to make the repair or remove the 
hazardous condition. The “owner,” “owner of record,” and “lien-holder of 
record” are persons that have a right or interest in the property and have 
recorded their interest with the county recorder or registrar of titles in the 
county where the property is located. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.151. Minn. 
Stat. § 463.21. Minn. Stat. §§ 
429.061-.081. 
See Section IX-D-4 -
Recovering costs. 
LMC information memo, 
Special Assessment Toolkit. 

If the city does the work, the costs that the city incurs in repairing or 
removing the hazardous condition are charged against the property as a lien 
against the real estate. This lien is levied and collected as a special 
assessment. The city council may provide that the assessment may be paid in 
five or fewer equal annual installments with interest at 8 percent per year. As 
an alternative to the lien, the city can recover the costs by obtaining a court 
judgment against the owner of the real estate.  

 
 
 
See Section IX-D - Removal 
or repair by order. 

If the property owner voluntarily remedies the problem, or if the city obtains 
consent and remedies the problem, the city may be able to avoid the lengthy 
process used when there is no consent. However, neither of these options is 
required by law. The city may choose not to use these options, but rather 
proceed straight to removal or repair by order. Similarly, if the city’s 
attempts to use these two methods fail, the city may proceed by ordering the 
repair or removal.  

61

http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0812/opa072349-1216.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.151
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.15
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.151
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/sagtext.pdf


 

D. Removal or repair by order 
Village of Zumbrota v. 
Johnson,  280 Minn. 390, 161 
N.W.2d 626 (Minn. 1968).  
 
City of Wells v. Swehla, No. 
C3-00-319 (Minn. Ct. App. 
Oct. 17, 2000) (unpublished 
decision). In the Matter of a 
Hazardous Building Located 
at 303-5th Ave. NE, in the 
City of Cambridge, No. C3-
99-1382, 2000 WL 136017 
(Minn. Ct. App. Feb. 8, 2000) 
(unpublished decision). 

The Minnesota supreme court has said that a city should use its authority 
under the hazardous building process prudently in order to avoid 
unnecessary infringement on the property owner’s rights. The city must be 
especially cautious when ordering a hazardous building to be razed. 
Minnesota courts have further stated that, although the statute gives the city 
the discretion to decide whether a building should be removed or repaired, 
destruction of a hazardous building should not be authorized unless it can be 
shown that the hazardous conditions cannot be removed or repaired. 
Therefore, the property owner should be given a reasonable amount of time 
to repair or remove the hazardous conditions. Failure to make repairs or 
remove hazardous conditions may be grounds to allow the city to demolish 
the building.  

 

1. The order to remove or repair 
Minn. Stat. § 463.16. Minn. 
Stat. § 463.17, subd. 1. 
Model Resolution Ordering 
the Repair or Removal of 
Hazardous Conditions. Model 
Resolution Ordering the 
Razing of a Hazardous 
Building.  

If the council determines a building is hazardous, the council may adopt an 
order declaring the building to be hazardous and ordering the owner to repair 
or remove the condition or raze the building. The order is usually done by 
resolution. The order to repair or remove a hazardous condition or to raze a 
hazardous building must be in writing and must: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 463.18. 

• Recite the grounds or basis for the order. 
• Specify the necessary repairs, if any, and provide a reasonable time to 

comply with the order. 
• State that a motion for summary enforcement of the order will be made 

to the district court of the county in which the hazardous building or 
property is situated unless corrective action is taken, or unless an answer 
is filed within the time specified in Minn. Stat. § 463.18, which is 20 
days. 

In the Matter of a Hazardous 
Building Located at 303-5th 
Ave. NE, in the City of 
Cambridge, No. C3-99-1382, 
2000 WL 136017 (Minn. Ct. 
App. Feb. 8, 2000) 
(unpublished decision). 
Village of Zumbrota v. 
Johnson, 280 Minn. 390, 161 
N.W.2d 626 (Minn. 1968). 

In preparing the order, it is important that the city take care to specify the 
necessary repairs. The order must be specific enough to give the property 
owner notice of the alleged hazardous conditions. One way to do this is to 
list the hazardous conditions individually in an explanatory manner. A 
general statement that the owner “must eliminate hazardous conditions” is 
likely not specific enough.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.17, subd. 2. 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 463.15, subd. 4. 

The council’s order must be served upon the property owner of record, or 
the owner’s agent if an agent is in charge of the building, any occupying 
tenants, and all lien-holders of record. (“Owner,” “owner of record,” and 
“lien-holder of record” are any people that have a right or interest in the 
property and evidence of this interest is recorded in the office of the county 
recorder or registrar of titles in the county where the property is situated). 

62

http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5326405640407016871&q=161+N.W.2d+626+&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5326405640407016871&q=161+N.W.2d+626+&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0010/319.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.16
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingRepairOrRemoval.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingRepairOrRemoval.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingRepairOrRemoval.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingRazingOfHazardousBuilding.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingRazingOfHazardousBuilding.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/OrderingRazingOfHazardousBuilding.docx
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.18
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5326405640407016871&q=161+N.W.2d+626+&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=5326405640407016871&q=161+N.W.2d+626+&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.15


 The service of the order must be done in the same manner as the service of a 
summons in a civil court action. To make sure the order is properly served, 
the city may hire a professional process server.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.17, subd. 2. 
 
LMC information memo, 
Newspaper Publication.  

If the owner cannot be found, the order is served by posting it at the main 
entrance to the building. In addition to posting, the order must be published 
for four weeks in the official city newspaper; if there is no official city 
newspaper, then the order is published in a legal newspaper in the county.  

Minn. Stat. § 469.201-.207. A city with a Targeted Neighborhood Revitalization Program may assess a 
penalty of up to 1 percent of the market value of the real property for any 
building in the city that the city determines to be hazardous. Because there 
are statutory requirements that must be met in order to do so, the city should 
work with its city attorney.  

 
a. Removal of personal property and fixtures 

Minn. Stat. § 463.24. If personal property or fixtures are in the building, the city may address 
these items in the order. Personal property is anything that is subject to 
ownership that is not classified as real property. Some examples of personal 
property are furniture, clothing, and televisions. A fixture is an item of 
personal property that is attached to the property or building and is 
considered part of the building Some examples of fixtures are built-in 
appliances, water heaters, and cabinets.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.24. Minn. 
Stat. § 463.21. 

If personal property or fixtures will unreasonably interfere with the work to 
be done, or if the razing or removal makes removal of the property 
necessary, the order may direct the removal of the personal property or 
fixtures within a reasonable amount of time. If the property or fixtures are 
not removed in the specified timeframe and the council enforces the order, 
the council may sell any valuable personal property, fixtures, or salvage at a 
public auction after three days posted notice. If the items do not have any 
appreciable value, the council may have them destroyed. 

 

2. Responding to the order  
Minn. Stat. § 463.18. Minn. 
Stat. § 463.20. 

Once the order is served on the appropriate people, any one of those people 
may contest the order. This is done by “answering” the order. The answer 
must specifically deny the facts in the order that are disputed. The answer to 
the order must be served within 20 days from the date the order was served. 
The answer is served in the manner provided for the service of an answer in 
a civil court action. When an answer is filed, the court will become involved 
like any other law suit. This situation is called a “contested case.”  

Minn. Stat. § 463.19. If no one answers the order, the proceedings are a “default case.” Although 
there may be no answer to the order, the city must still seek a court judgment 
to enforce the order.  

63

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/newspaperpublication.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=469
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.24
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.24
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.18
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.20
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.20
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.19


 
a. Court judgment: Contested case 

Minn. Stat. § 463.20. Where an answer to the order is filed, the proceedings are treated like any 
other civil action, except this type of action has priority over all other 
pending civil actions. A contested case has the attributes of a civil law suit, 
such as filing documents with the court, gathering evidence, and a trial.  

Minn. Stat. § 557.02. Because this type of case deals with a person’s interest in his or her real 
property, it is a good idea for the city to file a “lis pendens” with the county 
recorder at the start of the case. The lis pendens filing gives potential 
purchasers notice about the hazardous building proceedings. A lis pendens 
must include the names of the parties in the suit, the object of the law suit, 
and a description of the real property involved. At the end of the proceeding, 
it is a good idea to file a notice that the lis pendens is discharged. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.20. In the 
Matter of a Hazardous 
Building Located at 303-5th 
Ave. NE, in the City of 
Cambridge,  No. C3-99-1382, 
2000 WL 136017 (Minn. Ct. 
App. Feb. 8, 2000) 
(unpublished decision). City 
of Wells v. Swehla, No. C3-
00-319 (Minn. App. Oct 17, 
2000) (unpublished decision).  

After a trial, the court may or may not uphold the order issued by the city. 
The court may modify the order, including adding other hazardous 
conditions that need to be repaired or removed, so long as there is evidence 
to support the change. When considering the city’s order, the district court 
must consider the possibility of repairing the building.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.20. 
 

If the court upholds the order, with or without modification, the court enters 
judgment in favor of the city. The court also sets a time in which the 
hazardous condition must be repaired or removed or the building must be 
razed in compliance with the order. If the court does not uphold the order, 
the court annuls the order and sets it aside. Either way, the court 
administrator must mail a copy of the judgment to everyone originally 
served with the order.  

 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 463.161. 
 

If the court issues an opinion that gives the property owner a specified 
amount of time to fix or remove the hazardous conditions, the city generally 
cannot take action in that time period unless the order so authorizes. The city 
may ask the court to require the property owner to provide the city with 
ongoing access to inspect the progress and work. Generally, if at the end of 
the time period the owner has not fixed or removed the hazardous 
conditions, the city may repair or remove the hazardous condition or raze the 
hazardous building. Consult the city attorney to determine if any additional 
court orders are necessary. 

 
b. Court judgment: Default case 

Minn. Stat. § 463.19. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.17, subd.3. 

If no one files an answer to the city’s order, it becomes a default case. The 
city still needs to ask the court to enforce the city’s order. This is done by a 
motion to enforce the order. 

64

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.20
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=557.02
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.20
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0002/1382.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0010/319.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0010/319.htm
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.20
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.19
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17


 A motion is a type of court hearing where the city asks the court to do 
something. At least five days before filing the motion to enforce the order, 
the city must file a copy of the order and proof of service with the court 
administrator of the district court of the county where the hazardous building 
is located.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.17, subd.3. 
 
Minn. Stat. § 557.02. 

At the time of filing the order and proof of service with the district court, the 
city must also file a lis pendens notice with the county recorder or registrar 
of titles. This is called a “lis pendens.” The notice should also include the 
names of the parties and the purpose of the action. If the city abandons the 
hazardous building order proceeding, it must file a notice to that effect with 
the county recorder within 10 days. At the end of the proceeding, the city 
should file a notice that the lis pendens is discharged. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.19. There will be a court hearing on the motion to enforce the order. The city 
will present any evidence that the court requires. The court may then affirm 
or modify the order and enter judgment accordingly. The court will also set a 
time after which the council may enforce the order. The court administrator 
will mail a copy of the judgment to all people who were served with the 
original order. 

 

3. Doing the work 
 
 
 
Minn. Stat. § 471.345. 

If the city is authorized by the court to remove or repair a hazardous 
condition or to raze a hazardous building, the city council will need to 
determine the best way to get the work done. In some circumstances, city 
employees may be able to do the work. In other situations, the city council 
may need to hire someone to do the work. Depending on the work to be 
done, the competitive bidding laws may apply. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.21. Minn. 
Stat. § 463.24. 
 
 
 
 
Model Notice for Public 
Auction. 

When doing the work to remove or repair a hazardous condition or raze a 
hazardous building, there may be personal property or fixtures that need to 
be removed. If the original order included a provision ordering the property 
owner or tenant to remove personal property or fixtures, and the owner did 
not comply with the provisions in the order, the city may remove the 
property and fixtures. It is a good idea to keep an inventory of all items 
removed from the property so that the city has a record if questions arise 
later about what was removed. The city may also sell any salvage materials 
at the public auction. The auction must be posted for three days prior to the 
auction. If the items have no appreciable value, the city may destroy them.  

 

4. Recovering costs 
Minn. Stat. § 463.22. 
Model Resolution Adopting 
Expense Report. 

Throughout the hazardous building process, the city must keep an accurate 
account of the expenses it incurs in carrying out and enforcing the order. At 
a minimum, this account must include the following expenses: 

65

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.17
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=557.02
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.19
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=471.345
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.24
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=463.24
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/NoticeForPublicAuction.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/NoticeForPublicAuction.docx
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.22
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/AdoptingExpenseReport.docx
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/AdoptingExpenseReport.docx


 • Filing fees. 
• Service fees. 
• Publication fees. 
• Attorney’s fees. 
• Appraisers’ fees. 
• Witness fees, including expert witness fees. 
• Traveling expenses incurred by the municipality from the time the order 

was originally made. 
Minn. Stat. § 463.22. This is not an exhaustive list of expenses, so other expenses incurred by the 

city should also be included. The city must credit the account with the 
amount received, if any, from the sale of the salvage, building, or structure. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.22.  
City of Delano v. Abene, No. 
C0-01-983 (Minn. Ct. App. 
Dec. 11, 2001)(unpublished 
decision).  
City of Litchfield v. 
Schwanke, 530 N.W.2d 580 
(Minn. Ct. App. 1995).  

The city must report any actions it has taken under the order, including a 
statement of money received and expenses incurred, to the court for 
approval and allowance. Upon examination, the court may correct the 
expenses and determine the amount the city is entitled to receive. The court 
may also determine the reasonableness of the expenses. Then the court 
allows the expense account. Even where a court has significantly modified 
the original city order, the city may be awarded expenses.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.22.  
 
Minn. Stat. § 463.161, subd. 
3. Minn. Stat. § 463.21. 
Minn. Stat. §§ 429.061-.081. 
LMC information memo, 
Special Assessment Toolkit. 
Gadey v. City of Minneapolis,  
517 N.W.2d 344 (Minn. Ct. 
App. 1994). 

If the amount received from the sale of salvage or property does not equal or 
exceed the amount of expenses allowed by the court, the court’s judgment 
will certify the deficiency to the city clerk for collection. The owner or 
another interested party must pay the deficiency amount by October 1. The 
city cannot add on a penalty to this amount. If the payment is not made by 
October 1, the clerk must certify the amount of the deficiency amount to the 
county auditor to be entered on the county tax lists as a special assessment 
against the property. 

 The deficiency is collected in the same manner as other taxes. The amount 
collected by the county must be paid into the city treasury. The city council 
may provide that the assessment may be paid in five or fewer equal annual 
installments with interest at 8 percent per year. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.21. An alternative to using a special assessment against the property is to 
recover the costs by obtaining a court judgment against the property owner.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.22. If the amount received for the sale of the salvage or the building exceeds the 
allowed expenses incurred by the city, and there are delinquent taxes against 
the property, the court will direct that the excess shall be paid to the county 
treasurer to be applied to the delinquent taxes. If there are no delinquent 
taxes, the court will direct the surplus to be paid to the owner.  

66

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.22
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.22
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctapun/0112/983.htm
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=1069023798423125950&q=City+of+Litchfield+v.+Schwanke&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=1069023798423125950&q=City+of+Litchfield+v.+Schwanke&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.22
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.161
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=429
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/sagtext.pdf
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=17732221316836392398&q=517+N.W.2d+344+&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.21
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.22


Minn. Stat. § 463.23. The net proceeds of any sales of property, fixtures, or salvage must be paid 
to the persons designated in the judgment in proportion to their interest. 
Accepting this payment waives all objections to the payment and the 
proceedings. If any party to whom a payment of damages is made is not a 
resident of the state, or the place of residence is not known, the party is an 
infant or under a legal disability, refuses to accept payment, or if it is 
doubtful to whom the payment should be made, the city may pay the amount 
to the clerk of courts to be paid out under the direction of the court. Unless 
there is an appeal to the payment, the deposit with the clerk is considered a 
payment of the award.  

 

E. Eminent domain for hazardous buildings 
Minn. Stat. § 463.152.  
Minn. Stat. ch. 117. 
Handbook Chapter 14. 
Powell v. City of Clearwater,  
389 N.W.2d 206 (Minn. Ct. 
App. 1986).  

As an alternative to the hazardous building process discussed above, the city 
council may use its eminent domain authority. The city’s eminent domain 
authority allows the city to take (or condemn) private property for public 
use. The city must pay the landowner reasonable compensation. Essentially, 
this is a way to require that an owner sell his or her land to a city. This 
procedure requires a formal court action. However, the city does not need to 
use the eminent domain process in order to repair or remove a hazardous 
condition or building. 

Minn. Stat. § 463.152. Minn. 
Stat. ch. 117. 
 
Handbook Chapter 14. 

The city may use eminent domain to acquire any hazardous building, real 
estate on which any such building is located, or vacant or undeveloped real 
estate which is found to be hazardous within the meaning of the hazardous 
building laws in order to maintain a sufficient supply of adequate, safe, and 
sanitary housing and buildings used for living, commercial, industrial, or 
other purposes or any combination of purposes.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.152. Minn. 
Stat. § 117.025. 

Although the hazardous building laws declare the acquisition of a hazardous 
building and real estate, by state statutes, is to be a public purpose, it seems 
that is not enough. This is because in 2006 the state legislature made 
changes to the eminent domain laws that limited the purposes for which 
eminent domain may be used. When using eminent domain for a hazardous 
building, the city must have a public purpose under eminent domain law. 
The removal of a public nuisance is a specific public purpose defined by 
law. Therefore, it seems that if the city wishes to use eminent domain for a 
hazardous building, it would need to establish the building is a public 
nuisance or meets one of the other public purposes defined in state law.  

Minn. Stat. § 609.74. When making findings that a hazardous building is a public nuisance, it is a 
good idea to keep in mind the statutory definition of a public nuisance. A 
public nuisance is defined as: 

67

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.23
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.152
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=117
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/chapter14.pdf
http://scholar.google.com/scholar_case?case=12925824670444344384&q=389+N.W.2d+206+&hl=en&as_sdt=100000002
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.152
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=117
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=117
http://www.lmc.org/media/document/1/chapter14.pdf
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.152
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=117.025
https://www.revisor.leg.state.mn.us/statutes/?id=117.025
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=609.74


 • Maintaining or permitting a condition which unreasonably annoys, 
injures, or endangers the safety, health, morals, comfort, or repose of any 
considerable number of members of the public. 

• Interfering with, obstructing, or rendering dangerous for passage any 
public highway, right-of-way, or waters used by the public. 

• Any other act or omission declared by law to be a public nuisance. 
Minn. Stat. § 117.0412. There are other requirements, including hearing requirements, which must 

be followed when using eminent domain to acquire property. Therefore, the 
city should work closely with the city attorney to ensure all requirements 
and procedures are properly followed.  

Minn. Stat. § 463.261. Minn. 
Stat. §§ 117.50-.56.  
In re Wren, 699 N.W.2d 758 
(Minn. 2005) distinguished 
by, Instant Testing Co. v. 
Community Security Bank, 
715 N.W.2d 124 (Minn. Ct. 
App. 2006). 

All buildings and real estate upon which buildings are located acquired by 
eminent domain are acquisitions for the purposes of reestablishment and 
relocation benefits. Both state and federal law protect property owners and 
tenants who are required to move because of an eminent domain proceeding. 
The city, or condemning authority, must pay relocation costs for the people 
who must move. 

 Whether it is desirable for the city to use eminent domain instead of the 
statutory hazardous building process depends on what end result the city 
would like to accomplish. For example, if the city wants to acquire the 
property for a public use, the city may find the eminent domain process 
more suitable for the situation. On the other hand, if the city does not want 
to acquire the property, eminent domain may be less suitable for the 
situation. The city attorney will be able to assist the city in determining 
whether or not it is desirable to use eminent domain for a hazardous 
building. 

 

X. Conclusion 
 Cities have a variety of tools to use when they need to deal with properties 

that are hazardous or pose health risks. The city will need to evaluate the 
different options and determine which tool best fits the needs of the 
particular situation. By using the tools outlined in this memo, they can make 
buildings in the city safer for residents. 

 

68

https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=117.0412
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=463.261
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=117
https://www.revisor.mn.gov/statutes/?id=117
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0409/opa040207-0907.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0606/opa051505-0606.htm
http://www.lawlibrary.state.mn.us/archive/ctappub/0606/opa051505-0606.htm


Curr. Bal. 2016 End Bal. 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
General Capital 973,950$   993,015$  

Use of Funds:
Repay Hist. Cap. For Bridge 76,963         

CSAH 19 Sidewalk Extension 84,443         
Bridges Trail Extension 50,000         

Total 211,406      -         -           -           -           -           -           -           
Source of Funds

Bond
Tax Levy

Fund Balance 211,406       
Total 211,406      -         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Revenue 230,471      

Parks 230,471$   -$          
Use of Funds:

Repay Gen. Cap. For Trails 230,471       
Total 230,471      -         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Source of Funds
Bond

Tax Levy
Fund Balance 230,471       

Total 230,471      -         -           -           -           -           -           -           
Revenue -              

69



Curr. Bal. 2016 End Bal. 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Fire Department 162,448$   100,948$  

Use of Funds:
Grass Rig 80,000         

Freplace furnace/AC 10,000         
AED 1,500           

Conference room carpet 5,000      
card access system 8,000      

wild land gear 5,000      
20 SCBAs 100,000    

Replace Engine 11 800,000    
Replace Tanker 11 200,000    

Total 91,500        -           18,000   -           -           100,000   -           800,000   200,000   
Source of Funds

Bond
Tax Levy

Fund Balance 91,500         
Total 91,500        -         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Revenue 30,000        

Historic (26,963)$    -$          
Use of Funds:

Bridge Rehabilitation 50,000         
Total 50,000        -         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Source of Funds
Bond

Tax Levy
Fund Balance 50,000         

Total 50,000        -         -           -           -           -           -           -           
Revenue 76,963        

70



Curr. Bal. 2016 End Bal. 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Facilities 33,038$     33,038$    

Use of Funds:
Public Works Facility 2,000,000    
City Hall Renovation

Total 2,000,000   -         -           -           -           -           -           -           
Source of Funds

Bond 2,000,000    
Tax Levy

Fund Balance
Total 2,000,000   -         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Revenue -              

Equipment 107,774$   97,774$    
Use of Funds

Skid Loader 2,500           2,500      2,500        2,500        2,500        2,500        2,500        2,500        
Zero Turn Lawnmower 15,000      

Plow Truck 230,000    
1-ton Dually 35,000      

Winged Lawnmower 60,000      
Wood Chipper 10,000         

Crack Fill Machine 25,000    
Bucket Truck 10,000    

Total 12,500        37,500   52,500     2,500       2,500       2,500       232,500   62,500     
Source of Funds

Bond 232,500    62,500      
Tax Levy 2,500           2,500      52,500      2,500        2,500        2,500        

Fund Balance 10,000         35,000    
Total 12,500        37,500   52,500     2,500       2,500       2,500       232,500   62,500     

Revenue -              

71



Curr. Bal. 2016 End Bal. 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
Streets 653,849$   606,879$  

Use of Funds:
Street Maintenance 491,970       -         500,000    500,000    500,000    500,000    500,000    500,000    

Total 491,970      -         500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000   
Source of Funds

Bond 348,246    344,182    364,404    385,150    248,679    181,592    
Tax Levy 222,500       151,754    155,818    135,596    114,850    251,321    318,408    

Fund Balance 269,470       
Total 491,970      -         500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000   500,000   

Revenue 222,500      

Storm Water 553,687$      508,687$    
Use of Funds:

Mini Excavator 45,000         
Total 45,000        -         -           -           -           -           -           -           

Source of Funds
Bond

Tax Levy
Fund Balance 45,000         

Total 45,000        -         -           -           -           -           -           -           
Revenue -$              

$542,500 in total to dispurse amongst capital funds

*2016 Capital revenue of $310,000
**$30,000 earmarked for FD
***$222,500 earmarked for streets
****$57,500 remaining to be earmarked

*****$485,000 (as of 6/15/16) to be transferred from general operating.  This amount will decrease with claims on 6/21 and 7/5.

72


	ADP13B1.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  June 17, 2016
	Re:  Review of June 21, 2016 City Council Agenda

	06-21-16 Claims.pdf
	06-21-16 Batch Report
	6-21-16 check #
	06-21-16 COns
	06-21-16 Cash Balance
	06-21-16 Revenue
	06-21-16 Expense

	dangerous_properties.pdf
	Dangerous Properties
	I. Types of Dangerous Properties 
	II. Lawfully entering private property
	III.  Due process
	IV. Hazardous excavations
	V. Buildings damaged by fire or explosion
	A. Establishing the account
	B. Discontinuing the account
	C. Funding and using the account
	1. Funding the account
	2. Releasing funds from the account
	a. Releasing funds to bank or lender
	b. Releasing funds to the insured 

	3. Use of retained proceeds


	VI. Securing vacant buildings 
	VII. Tenant remedies action
	A. Bringing a tenant’s remedies action
	B. Inspection
	C. Complaint and summons
	D. Answer and defenses
	E. Trial and judgment
	F. Administrators
	1. The administration
	2. Ending administration

	G. Emergency tenant remedies action

	VIII. Garbage houses
	A. Local ordinances 

	IX. Hazardous buildings
	A. Characteristics of a hazardous building
	B. Identifying a hazardous building
	C. Removal or repair by consent
	D. Removal or repair by order
	1. The order to remove or repair
	a. Removal of personal property and fixtures

	2. Responding to the order 
	a. Court judgment: Contested case
	b. Court judgment: Default case

	3. Doing the work
	4. Recovering costs

	E. Eminent domain for hazardous buildings

	X. Conclusion

	06-21-16 Council Meeting Transfer Discussion.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP55AB.tmp
	To:  Mayor Kauffman & Members of the Hanover City Council
	From:  Brian Hagen, City Administrator
	Date:  June 17, 2016
	Re:  Review of June 21, 2016 City Council Agenda




